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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Varindera Constructions Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Varindera Constructions
Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company™) and its subsidiary/step-down subsidiary
(the Holding Company and its subsidiary/step-down subsidiary together referred to as the “Group™),
comprising of the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the consolidated statement of profit
and loss, (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of cash flows and
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including a summary of material accounting and other explanatory information
which includes financials statement / financials information of nine joint operations (hercinafter referred
to as “Consolidated Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate Financial Statements and on
the other financial information of the subsidiary/step-down subsidiary. the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, of
consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and its
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements™ section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder. and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit
evidence obtained by other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters section
below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Information Other Than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual Report
(including Corporate Governance Report) but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.

Qur opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so. consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as
applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

Responsibility of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements by the Management and the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors
of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each companies in
the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities For the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: -
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
Financial Statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial information of nine jointly controlled operations included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company whose financial information reflect total assets of
Rs. 727.83 million (Company’s share in total assets Rs. 378.54 million) and total revenue of Rs.
1.055.12 million (Company’s share in total revenue Rs. 531.24 million) and total comprehensive
income/(loss) of Rs. (72.27) million (Company’s share in total comprehensive income/(Loss) Rs.
(35.58) million) and net cash inflow of Rs. 17.37 million for the year ended on that date included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by the other auditors and whose reports
have been furnished to us by the Company’s management. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these jointly
controlled operations, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.

We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary and one step-down subsidiary, whose
financial statement reflect total assets of Rs. 303.15 million and total net assets of Rs. (28.20) Million
as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of Rs. 33.28 million, total comprehensive income/(loss) of Rs.
(17.65) million and net cash inflow of Rs. 25.14 million for the year ended on that date, as considered
in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by independent auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the Management. This subsidiary and step-down subsidiary are
located outside India whose financial statements and other financial information have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in its country of incorporation and which
have been audited by the other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards accepted in their
country. The Holding Company’s Management has converted these financial statements of such
subsidiary and step-down subsidiary located outside India from accounting principles generally
accepted in their country to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these
conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s Management.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of aforesaid subsidiary, step-down subsidiary and jointly controlled
operations and our report in terms of sub-Sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to
the aforesaid subsidiary, step-down subsidiary and jointly controlled operations, is based solely on the
report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding
Company and audited by us.
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Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I

-3

a)

b)

¢)

h)

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order™/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11)
of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations
given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us, we report that there are no qualifications
or adverse remarks in CARO report.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on consideration of the report of
the other auditors on financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary and step-
down subsidiary as referred to in Other Matters paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far as
it appears from our examination of those books, except in case of branches where daily back up of
books of account is maintained from August 25, 2024 and also for the matters stated in below
paragraph (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended) (“the rules™).

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is
made to our remarks in paragraph (b) above and (i) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of
the Rules.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A™.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended:
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In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iv,

V.

The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact, of pending litigations as at
March 31, 2025 on its financial position of the Group— Refer Note 42 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Group did not have any long-term contracts including long term derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Holding Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Holding Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Group has not declared any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2025.
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Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Holding Company has used
accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and
the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software systems, except that the audit trail at the database level for certain master table
fields was enabled from September 7, 2024. In respect of the accounting software used for
branch operations, the audit trail feature was enabled and operated from August 22, 2024
for one branch, and from August 25, 2024 for another branch. Further, during the course
of our audit, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with and in respect of the accounting software where the feature was enabled, the audit
trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

For S S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: QOﬂ?ﬁﬁhj N500441

Jalaj Soni
Partner
Membership No.: 528799

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 02,2025
UDIN: 25528799BMIHVM6520
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of Varindera Constructions Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2 (g) of ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Varindera Constructions
Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of Varindera Constructions Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of that date.

The audit of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is
applicable only to the Holding Company.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
criteria established by the Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or

error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated

Financial Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated
Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025,
based on the internal controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For § S KOTHARI MEHTA & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm chistrgl{m_No._"QQﬂ?SﬁN /N50044]

Ay, 15N o
™ \
(<f 7 \—\
A NEW DELHI |5

I\

\
\

Jalaj Somi \"\
Partner N
Membership No.:528799

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 02,2025
UDIN: 25528799BMIHVM6520
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VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identity Number (CIN):U45201DL1987PLC128579
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(Al in Indian R in millions, unless otherwise stated)

'F

Particulars

Notes

As at
March 31,2025

As at
March 31, 2024

ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

{a) Property, plant and equipment 3 (a) 224034 1.663.11
(b} Investment Property 3 (b) 7.51 8.02
{e) Intangible assets 4 (a) 5.69 1331
(d) Right-of-use assets 4 (b) 155,10 477
(e} Financial assers :
(i) Dther financial assets 5 a71.88 860,78
(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 6 497 560
(g) Other non-current assets 7 60.93 9.58
Total non-current assets (1) 3,450.42 2,565.17
2 Current assets
(a) Inventories 8 251360 1,635.99
(b} Financial assets
(1} Investments 9 8.02 7.73
(1) Trade receivables 10 531040 3,220.46
(ii} Cash and cash equivalents 11 (a) 82323 519.93
(iv) Other bank balances (other than i above) 11 (b) 1,696.20 48539
(v) Loans 12 - 116.62
{vi)Other financial assets 13 47.82 13477
(c) Current tax assets (Net) 14 111.75 30.39
(d} Other current assets 15 1,817.80 1.515.18
Total current assets (2) 12,379.62 8,175.46
Total assets (1+2) 15,830.04 10,740.63
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(1) Equity share capital 16 155 64 6.19
(i) Other equity 17 6,980.01 5.048.72
7,135.65 5,054.91
Nen-Controlling Interests 18 (0.26) -
Total equity (1) 7,135.39 5,054.91
Liabilities
2 Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 501.73 878.15
(1) Lease liabilities 20 92 88 -
(e} Provisions 21 75.80 70.3%
Total non-current liabilities (2) 670.41 9548.54
3 Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 4.370.78 2,603.39
(i) Lease liabilities 23 £64.23 479
(iii) Trade payables 24
-Total outstanding dues of micro 630.80 701.31
enterprises and small enterprises
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other 1,661.84 635.38
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 25 73978 626.43
{b) Other current liabilities 26 544.92 155.73
(c} Provisions 27 11.91 10.15
Total current liabilities (3) -8,024 .24 4,737.18
Total equity and liabilities (1+2+3) 15,830.04 10,740.63
Material accounting policies 2
Accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 1-51
As per our report of even date attached ———
For S S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP \‘\\x For and on behalf of the Board of Directors pof

Chartered Accountants Varindera Constructions Limited

Firm's registration number - 000756M / N500441

Varinder Kumar Garg Vivek Garg
Chairman Managind Director & CE

DIN: 01 5633/65/ DIN: 02187343

Jalaj Soni
Partner
Membership No. 528799

Flace : Gurugram
Date : May 02, 2025 é’ 27 -
i -~
/ Vikas Jain- Anurag Srivas
Chigififiancial officer Company Secreta
Place | Gurugram Mune. A21317

Date : May 02, 2025



VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED
Corporate Identity Number (CIN):U45201DL1987PLC128579
C

lidated Stat t of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Al s in Indian Rup in millions, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Notes For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year ended March 31, 2024
I Income
Revenue from operations 28 19,858.76 13,889.23
Other income 29 284 44 150.53
Total income (I) 20,143.20 14,039.81
Il Expenses
Cost of materialz consumed 30(a) 9.889.81 7.003.27
Construction expenses 30(b) 4,851.83 3.171.74
Employee benefits expense 31 1,338.12 1L017.20
Finance costs 32 496,12 325.79
Depreciation and amortization expenses 33 258.02 188.36
Other expenses 34 673,66 450.00
Total expenses (II) 17,507.56 12,156.36
III Profit before tax (I - ) 2,635.64 1,883.45
1V Tax expense
{a) Current tax 36 603 57 456.46
(b ) Deferred rax charge/ (credit) {1.82] {6.63)
Total tax expense 601.75 449.63
V Profit for the year (111 - IV} 2,033.89 1,433.82
V1 Other comprehensive income
ftems that will not be reclassified io Frofit or Loss
-Re-measurement gains / ({losses) on defined benefit plans 501 2.93
-Inceme Tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified (o Profit or Loss {1.26) (0.74)
Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss :
-Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign 42.85 (9.73)
aperationg; net of taxes
Total other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) 46.60 (7.54)
VII Total comprehensive income for the year (V + VI) 2,080.49 1,426.28
Net profit for the year attributable to :
-Owners of the company 2,034.15 1,433.82
-Non-Controlling interest (0.26) 0.00
Other Comprehensive income for the year attributable to
-Owners of the company 46.60 (7.54)
-Non-Controlling interest - 0.00
Total Comprehensive income for the year attributable to
-Owners of the company 208075 1426.28
-Non-Contrelling interest {0.26) 0.00
VIII Earnings per equity share (EFS) 37
Basic (in Rs) 13.13 §.25
Diluted {in Rs) 1313 9.25
1.00 1.00

Face value per share (in Rs)*
* Fave value reduced fram Rs. 100 ta Rs_ i refer note - 16

Material accounting policies 2
Accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 1-51

As per our report of even date attached

For § S Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants ~.
Firm's registration number : 000756M / N500441

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Varindera Constructions Limited

Jalaj Soni
Partner

Varinder Kumar Garg Vivek
Chairman Managing Director & CEQ

Membership No. 528799 DIN: 01563868 DIN: 12187343
Place ' Gurugram
Date - May 02, 2025
/% o
" VikasJaii Anurag Srivastava
Chief financial officer Company Secretary
Place | Gurugram Mno. A21317
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VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate ldentity Number (CIN):U45201DL1987PLC128579
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended March

Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2025 31, 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax 2,635.64 1,883.45
Adjustments for :
Depreciaticn of Property, Plant and Equinments and Intangible Assets 258.02 18836
Foreign exchange loss/(gain} (156 42) {25.93)
Interest Expense {including processing fees and athers) 480,65 32478
Interest Expense on lease labilities 647 101
Interest Income {107.55) (82 56)
Interest ding on security il {0.10] (0.12)
Liabiities Writien Back - (303}
Loss/(Frofit) on Sale of investment preperty [13.37)
Loss/{Frofit} on Sale and discard of property, plant and equipment - 48 61
Fair yalue change of Mutual funds {0.30) {1.57}
Provigion for expecied credit [oss G7.66 Bf 23
Operating profit before king capital ci 3,193.07 2,386.46
Adjustments for ;
(Increase)/ Decrease in rade receivables {1.986.78) {660.26)
{Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets (7.18) (3080.21)
{Increase} / Decrease in otner asseis (331.45) {490.63)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (B7T7.61) (508.73)
(Decrease)/increase inather liabilites 38918 131 04
{Decrease)/ Increase |1: trade payabies B55.95 133.20
{Decrease)/ Increase in other financial labilithes 190.16 279.93
Decrease)/increase in provisions 12,18 2661
Cash generated from/{used in) operating activities 1,537.52 B07.41
_Income Tax Pad (685.01} (390 82)
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activiti 852.51 416.59
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plamt and equipment [BT5.65) (71750
Purchase of intangible assets (0.06)
Proceeds from sale of investments in asseciates companies
[nvestment m Subsidiary -
Purchase of mutual tunds o0 (4.00)
Proceeds from sale of nivestment property - 53.80
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipmient 542 164
Lean given ta the related sary (145,22} (103 95}
Hepayment ef Loosn given by the related partics 28122 3150
Investment i deposits (net) with banks (77708 {249.12)
Interest Incame i A e e L e 10072 8183
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities e e {1,430.56) b (1.006.04)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (including processing fees and others; 1468.32) (324 11}
Interest un lease labilities (6.47) {101}
FProceeds from long term borrowings 1.62224 1813 00
Rep of leng term b g {1,438.07) [1.027.94)
Proceeds / (repavment] of short term bormowings {net) 122687 335.0%
Dividend Paid - (2.21)
Frincipal payments agawst lease jiabilities S (35.00) {14.37)
Net cash generated from/(used in} Fi ing Activities 1.35 778.45
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 3.30 189.00
Cash and cash equivalents ai the baginning of the year 9.93 330.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the closing of the year 82323 519.93
e - e
a] Cash and Cash Equivalents included in Statement of Consolidated Cash Flow comprise of following (Refer Note 11(a) }:
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 31-March-2024
Cash on Hand 072 1227
Balance with bank
In cusrent 822.51 50766
Total B23.23 519£
b) Reconciliation of changes in liabilities arising trom fi ing activities: _
Particulars As at € iidhine Non Cash As at
} } 01-April-2023 Change 31-March-2024
Non Current Borrowings {including current maturities) 1,167 27 TBE 06 - 1.952.33
Interest Accrued (including Interest on lease lizbilities) 516 [325.12) 325.79 583
1 .77 780.66 3128.73 3,492.16
= = —— o

Total 2,34




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED
Cerporate Identity Number (CIN):U45201DL1987PLC128579
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Al ts in Indian Rugp in milliens, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars As at Non Cash As at
Cashflows
01-April-2024 Change March 31,2025
Non Current Borrowings: [including current maturities) 195233 16417 - 311650
Current Borrowings 1.528.21 1,226.97 - 2.756.18
Interest Accrued (incduding Interest on lease liabilities | 5.83 {48480} 459599 17.02
Lease Liabilities o 4.78 (31.63) 17543 148 55
Total 1,4982.16 B74.71 671,42 5,038.29
= —— —_—t
Material accounting palicies 2
Accompanying notes (o I d-firancial 1-51
Ag per our report of even date attached
For $ § Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP ’_‘\_““H_& For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants T Varindera Constructions Limited
Firm's registration number | D0075EN / NS(441
Jalaj Soni Varinder Eumar Garg mm
Partner Chairman Managang O
OIN: T156 1808 oI 021

Membership No. 528799
Flace - Gurugram
Dare - May D2, 2025

Plae® Gurugram
Date  dday 7. 2025




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED
Corporate Identity Number (CIN):U45201DL1987PLC128579
Consalidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

{a) Equity share capital

At March 31, 2024

Changes in Equity 2 s
. Restated balance Changes in equity share Balance as at
Balinex e atapnll, 1023 Share Cagital dusto. Lo 7093 capital during the year  March 31, 2024
prior period errars

619 - 615 = 619

As at March 31,2025

ges in Equity Restated balance Changes in equity share Balance as at

Balance as at April 1, 2024 Share Capital due to i =
1 -
o dienty at April 1, 2024 capital during the year March 31,2025
618 - 6.19 143 45 15564

* On account of issue af bonus shares-Refer Nole-16

{b) Other equity
Ttems of Other Attributable to Attributable to
Reserves and surplus Comprehensive owners of the Non-Controlling
Particulars o Income pany I Total
Securities premium Retained General Reserve  Foreign currency
eamings lation reserve

As at April 1, 2023 o 11583 3,258.50 249.00 1.32 3,624.65 - 3,624,685
Frofit for the vear = 1.433.82 - - 1,433.82 - 1,433.82
Other comprehensive mcame, net of income fax 19 - (9.73) (7.54) - {7.54)
Dividend paid " (221} = - (z.21) = {2.21)
.-\Hﬂropriat'mn to Cenersl Reaerve - {&0.00) 80.00 - - = "
As at March 31. 2024 115.83 4,612.30 329.00 (8.41) 5,048.72 - 5,048,972

_As at April 1, 2024 115.83 4,512 30 329.00 (8.41) 5,048.72 . 5,048.72_
Profit for the year - 203415 - - 2,034.15 {0.26) 2,033.89
Gther comprehensive income, net of income tax - 375 - 4285 46,60 - 46.60
Dividend paid . T - - = = - -
Appropration (o General Reserve o - R - - - - -
Bonus share igsuad (L1583} - {3362} {149.45) - [149.45)
As at March 31,2025 - 8,650,20 295.38 34.44 6,880.01 (0.26) 6,979.75
Material acvounting policies 2

Accompanying notes 16 torsohdated financial 1-51

statemenis

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

As per our report of even dete attached
Varindera Constructions Limited

For § § Kothari Mehta & Co_ LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's registrati mber: DO0TSAN # NSO0441

a— /
Jalaj Soni Varinder Kumar Garg ViveR Garg
Partner Chairrman Managing Director & CE
DN 01563868 DIN: 02187343,

Membership No. 528795
Place : Gurugram
Date : May 02, 2025

PlagarCurugram Mono. A21317




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U45201DL1987PLC 128579
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Corporate Information and material accounting policies information

1.1 Corporate Information

The consolidated financial statements comprise of financial statements of Varindera Constructions Limited (*the Holding
Company’, ‘the Parent’ or 'the Company’ or ‘“VCL’) and its subsidiary (collectively refer as a ‘the Group”) for the year ended
March 31, 2025, The company is a public company incorporated on 15 December 1987, It is classified as Non- Government
Company and registered at Registrar of Companies, Delhi. The company Identification Number (CIN) . is
U45201DLI987PLCI128579. Its register address is office No. 613, 6th Floor, Plot No. 4. Vishwadeep Tower, District Centre,
Janakpuri A-3, West Delhi, India, 110058,

The group has been providing comprehensive and massive construction solutions in various segments of national importance
like housing. institutional, healthcare, aviation, roads and highways. With company’s rich experience, they execute
innovative techniques in engineering, procurement, and construction, Company’'s expertise in the domain increases
efficiency, reduces time and cost overruns and adequately caters to the needs of a dynamic environment.

The Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorized for issue on May 02, 2025,

1.2 Basis of preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements
i) Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 and relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013,

The Comparative information for the vear ended March 31, 2024 were prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India which were audited by us.

ii} Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and
labilities:

(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

(ii) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U45201DL1987PLC128579
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

i) The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ('INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest
millions (INR '000,000) up to two decimal places, except when otherwise indicated.

iv) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilitics as at the Balance Sheet date, the
reported amount of revenue and expenditure for the period, and disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the Balance
Sheet date. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are based upon
the Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of consolidated financial
statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a
yearly basis. Revisions to accounting estimates. if any. are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future years affected.

v) Operating cycle

The Group adopted an operating cycle based on the project period i.c. start of the project till completion of the project
(achievement of Provisional Completion Date or Completion Date) and accordingly all project-related assets and liabilities
are classified into current and non-current. Other than the above, 12 months is considered as a normal operating cycle.

2. Material accounting policy

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied for all years presented.

Material accounting policies adopted by the Company are as under:
2.01 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

i) Subsidiary
Subsidiary are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity,

Subsidiary are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date when control ceases.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiary line by line adding together like
items of assets, labilities, equity. income and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group Companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiary have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. Details of the
Subsidiary are set out in Note 55 of Restated Consolidated Financial statement.




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identification Number (CIN); U45201 DL 1987PLC 128579
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

ii) Non-controlling interests
The Group does not have any non- controlling interests in an acquired entity

The subsidiary and step-down subsidiary companies considered in the consolidated financial statements is -

| Name of the entity Country of | Subsidiary / Step- % of sharcholding
incorporation down Subsidiary
As on March As on March
31, 2025 31, 2024
| Varindera Mauritius Subsidiary 100% -
Constructions
International Limited
VCIL Mauritius Maldives Step-down 65% -
Private Limited subsidiary |

2.02 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting - Jointly controlled operation

2.03

The Holding Company recognises its direct right to the assets, liabilitics, revenues and expenses of joint operations
and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. These have been incorporated
in the standalone financial statements of Holding Company under the appropriate headings.

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting - Accounting under Equity method for Associate Entities

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafier to
recognise the group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the group's
share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associate are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest
in these entities. Unrealised losses are also climinated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investces have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the group.

2.04 Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The group collects Goods and Service Tax on behalf of government, and therefore, these are not
consideration to which the group is entitled, hence, these are excluded from revenue, The group has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U45201DL1987PLC128579
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

a) Revenue from Construction contracts

The Group recognises revenue from engineering, procurement and construction contracts (*EPC") over the period of
time, as performance obligations are satisfied over time due to continuous transfer of control to the customer. EPC
contracts are generally accounted for as a single performance obligation as it involves complex integration of goods and

services.

Revenue, where the performance obligation is satisfied over time since the group creates assets that the customer
controls, 1s recognized in proportion to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of completion is assessed by
reference to surveys of work performed i.c. Revenue from construction and services activities is recognized over a
period of time and the Company uses the output method to measure progress of delivery "

Due to the nature of the work required to be performed on many of the performance obligations, the estimation of total
revenue and cost of completion is complex, subject to many variables and requires significant judgment. Variability in
the transaction price arises primarily due to liquidated damages, price variation clauses, changes in scope, incentives, if
any. The Group considers its experience with similar transactions and expectations regarding the contract in estimating
the amount of variable consideration to which it will be entitled and determining whether the estimated variable
consideration should be constrained. The Group includes estimated amounts in the transaction price to the extent it is
probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is resolved. The estimates of variable consideration are based largely on an assessment
of anticipated performance and all information (historical, current and forecasted) that is reasonably available.

Progress billings are generally issued upon completion of certain phases of the work as stipulated in the contract. Billing
terms of the over-time contracts vary but are generally based on achieving specified milestones. The difference between
the timing of revenue recognised and customer billings result in changes to contract assets and contract liabilities,

The contracts generally result in revenue recognised in excess of billings which are presented as contract assets on the
statement of financial position. Amounts billed and due from customers are classified as receivables on the statement of
financial position. The portion of the payments retained by the customer until final contract settlement is not considered
a significant financing component since it is usually intended to provide customer with a form of security for Group’s
remaining performance as specified under the contract, which is consistent with the industry practice. Contract
liabilities represent amounts billed to customers in excess of revenue recognised till date. A liability is recognised for
advance payments and it is not considered as a significant financing component because it is used to meet working
capital requirements at the time of project mobilization stage. The same is presented as contract liability in the statement

of financial positicn

The group recognizes revenue at an amount for which it has right to consideration (i.e. right to inveice) from customer
that corresponds directly with the valuc of the performance completed to the date.




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U45201DL1987PLC128579
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

Consideration of significant financing component in a contract

The group receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS 115, the group
does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if it
expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer
and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Revenue from construction/project contracts executed under joint operations [in terms of Ind AS 111 “Joint
Arrangements”], is recognized on the same basis as adopted in respect of contracts independently executed by the
Group.

Contract modifications

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope
or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to the
existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not
distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis, while those that are distinet are accounted for prospectively,
cither as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at the standalone selling price. or as a termination of
existing contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price.

b) Revenue from services contracts

Service contracts (ineluding operation and maintenance contracts and job work contracts) in which the group has the
right to consideration from the customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
group’s performance completed to date, revenue is recognized when services are performed and contractually billable.

2.05 Current versus non-current classification
The group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
* Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Expected 1o be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
et is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,
eIt is held primarily for the purpose of trading.
eIt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afler the reporting
period.




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Caorporate Identification Number (CIN): U45201DL1987PLC128579
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
For operating cycle details refer 1.2 (v) above
2.06 Foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated tfinancial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency'). The Company’s consolidated financial
statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Company’s functional and presentation

Currency.
(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and Josses resulting from the settlement of such transaction and from the
translation of monctary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year-end exchange rate are
generally recognized in the stalement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that arc measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or expense in
the year in which they arise with the exception of exchange differences on gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value which is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or
profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

2.07 Property. plant and equipment

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, less accurmulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other
incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets and are further
adjusted by the amount of input tax credit availed wherever applicable. Subsequent costs are included in asset's carrying
amount or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future cconomic benefit associated
with the item will flow to the group and the cost of item can be measured reliably. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the group depreciates them separately based on their respective useful
lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U45201DL1987PLC128579
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(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

recognized in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after
its use 1s included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected [Tom its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property. plant and equipment under installation / under development as at
the balance sheet date.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
tinancial year end and adjusted, if appropriate.

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis on Straight Line value method using the
useful Iives of the assets estimated by management and in the manner prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act
2013 along with residual value 5%. The usetul life is as follows:

| Class of assets Estimated Useful Life* | As per Schedule 11 Method of Depreciation
| Building 30-60 60 Straight Line

Plant & machinery 8-12 15 Straight Line
- Computers and servers 3-6 3-6 Straight Line

Furniture and fixtures 5-10 10 Straight Line

Vehicles 8-10 8-10 Straight Line

*Based on Internal assessment the management believes that the useful life given above best represent the
period over which management expects to use these assets.

The land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated.
2.08 Investment property

Properties (including those under construction) held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as an
investment property and are measured and reported at cost. including transaction costs and borrowing costs capitalized for
qualifying assets, in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Policies with respect to depreciation, useful life, and
derecognition are on the same basis as stated in PPE supra.

2.09 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on imtial recognition at cost. Following iniual recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase price and any attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U45201DL1987PLC 128579
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements
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The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as cither finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortization
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category
consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually 1o determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not. the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are
disposed off,

Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a Straight Line value method over the estimated useful
economic life of 5 years. which represents the period over which the group expects to derive economic benefits from the

use ol the assets.

Intangible Assets under development includes cost of intangible assets under development as at the balance sheet
date.

2.10 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 1o a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
mstrument of another entity.

Compound financial instruments
Compound financial instruments are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract. On
issuance of compound financial instruments, the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market rare for
an equivalent instrument. This amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortized cost (net of transaction
cost) until it is extinguished on redemption/ conversion.
(i) Financial Assets
The group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
e Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income. or through profit or

loss).
o Those measured at amortized cost.
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The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terins
of the cash flow,

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
tlows, selling the financial assets, or both

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets (not recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are recognized minally at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the azquisition of the financial asset. Transaction cost of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into following categories:

e Decbt instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

¢ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
s Debtinstruments at amortized cost

= Equity instruments

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are cither recognized entirely in the statement of profit and
loss (i.e. fair value through profit or loss), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other
comprehensive income). For invesiment in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the
investment is held. For investment in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for equity instruments at FVTOCL

Debt instruments at amortized cost
A Debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if both the following conditions are met.

a) Business Model Test: The objective is o hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than o
sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes).

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt instrument give rise on specific dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

This category is most relevant to the group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the group
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not
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consider the expected credit losses. The EIR amortization is included in other income in profit or loss, The losses arising
from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applics to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at fair value through OCJ
A Debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if following criteria are met.

a) Business Model Test: The objective of financial instrument is achicved by both collecting contractual cash flows

and for selling financial assets.

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt instrument give rise on specific dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Debt instrument included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognition of interest
income. impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses which are recogmized in statement of profit and
loss. On derecognition of asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the equity 1o
statement of profit & loss. Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCT financial assct is reported as interest mcome using the
EIR method.

Debt instruments at FYVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments. Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVTOCIL, 1s classified as at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a Debt instrument that is subsequently measured
at FVTPL and is not a part of a hedging relationship is recognized i statement of profit or loss and presented net in the
statement of profit and loss within other gains or losses in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these Debt
instruments is included in other income,

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) s
primarily derecognized (i.c. removed from the group’s statement of financial position) when:

¢ Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. or

*  The group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement and
either;
a) The group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets or
b) The group has retained the contractual right to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or maore recipients.

Where the group has transferred an asset, the group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets. In such cases. the financial asset is derecognized.
Where the entity has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial
assets, the financial asset is not derecognized.
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Where the group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the group has not retained control of the
financial asset. Where the group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized
1o the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the group applies the expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit risk exposure

¢ Fmancial assets measured at amortized cost;

s Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

The group tollows a "simplified approach" tor recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

» Trade reccivables or contract revenue receivables:

Under the simplificd approach, the group does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The group uses a
Provision matnx to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix
it based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of trade receivable and is adjusted for
forward-looking esinmates. Al every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-lovking estimates are analyzed.

For recognminon of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the group determines whether there
has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However. if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 1f, 1 subsequent periods, the credit guality of the instrument improves such that
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. then the group reverts to recognizing
impairment loss allowance based on 12- months ECL.

Lifetme ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial mstrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the hifetime ECL that results from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR, When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required Lo consider:

(a)  All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension. call and similar options)
over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the
financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual
term of the financial istrument

(b) Cash flows from the sale of collateral heid or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
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terms.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other income’ in the statement of profit and

lpss.

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below: -

{a) Financial assets measured as at amortized cost. ECL is presented as an allowance. i.e., as an integral part ot the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount

th) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, the expected credit losses
do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet. which remains at fair value. Instead. an amount equal to
the allowance that would arise if the asset was measured at amortized cost is recognized in other
comprehensive income as the "accumulated impairment amount”.

['rade Receivables

Trude receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed m the sdinary course of
business. They arc gencrally due for settlement within one year and therefore are all classified as current. Where the
seitlement is due after one vear, they are classified as non-current. Trade receivables are recognized inthally a1 e
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they are
recognized at fair value, The group holds the trade reccivables with the objective o collect the contractual cash flows
and therefore measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, Further, trade
receivables include retention money receivable from the customers on expiry of the defect liability period.
However, the group has an option to get the refund of the above receivables if bank guarantee is provided.

Contract Assets

A contract asset is the entity’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the entity has
transferred to the customer. A contract asset becomes a receivable when the entity’s right to consideration is
unconditional. which is the case when only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is
due. The impairment of contract assets is measured. presented and disclosed on the same basis as trade

receivables.
{(ii) Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial habilities are classified at initial recognition as financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss. loans
and borrowings. and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The group financial liabilities include
loans and borrowings including bank overdraft, trade payables, trade deposits, retention money, liabilitics

towards services and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
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The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profirt or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or luss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon imitial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for rading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also
includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging instruments in a
hedge reiationship as defined by [nd AS 109 The separated embedded derivate are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial habilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilitics designated as FVTPL,
fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair valuc of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The group has
not designated any financial lability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Trade Pavables

These amounts represent habilities for goods and services provided to the group prior to the end of the financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using Effective interest rate method.

Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
group transfers goods or services to the customer, contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the group performs

under the contract.
Impairment of assets

As at the end of each accounting year, the carrying amounts of PPE. investment property, intangible assets and
investments in associate are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE. investment property, intangible assets and investments in associate

are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any.

An impairment is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount of receivable or assct relating to contracts with
customers (a) the remaining amount of consideration that the group expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which such asset relates; less (b) the costs that relate directly to providing those goods or services and that
have not been recognized as expenses,
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Impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is determined:

(1) In the case of an individual asset, at the higher of tair value less costs to sell and the value-in-use: and

(i1} In the case of a cash generating unit (the smallest identifiable group of asscts that generates independent cash
flows), at the higher of the cash generating unit’s fair values less costs to scll and the value-in-use

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective interest rate method. Gains and
losses are recogmzed in profit or loss when the liabilitics are derecognized as well as through the Effcctive interest
rate amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral pait of the Effective interest rate. The Effective interest rate amortization is
included as finance costs n the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing is classified as current liabilitics unless the group has an unconditional right 1o defer settlement ol the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecogmzed when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or medication is treated as the
derccognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounis and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously

Reclassification of financial assets/ financial liabilities

The group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial
assets which are debt instruments. a reclassification is made only if there is a change mn the business model for
managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected 1o be infrequent. The group’s senior management
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the
group’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
rations, If the group reclassifies

MEH,;; \

group cither begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its ope:




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identification Number (CIN): U45201DL1987PLC128579
Notes forming part of Consolidated financial statements

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

financial assets, 1t applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the

immediately next reporting period following the change n business model. The group does not restate any previously
recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

2.11 Inventories
a) Basis of Valuation.

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing cost of obsolescence, if any.
However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventaries are not written down below cost if
the finished products in which they will be incorporuted are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of
cost and net reahizable value is made on an item-by-iten basis.

b) Method of Valuation:

(1) Cost of raw materials and Construction materials has heen determined on meing weighted average cosi
method and comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax
authorities! and all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories 1o their present location and condition.

(ii) Real estate: Land and building held as real estate inventory 1s valued at cost or net realizable value winchever is
lower.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.12 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.
Current and deferred tax are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or direetly in equity. in which case. the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax:

Clurrent tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision for current
income tax is made for the tax liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances, deductions and
exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

The group’s management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities arc offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.
Deferred tax:
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Deferred income tax is recognized using the baisnce sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
deductible und faxable temporary differences acising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amount in consolidated financial statements.

Peterred Income 14X aisets are recognized 1o the extent that it is probabic that taxable profit will be available againsi
which the deducnible teriporacy differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

uniiized,

Faz cmvying amonnt of defuited wx assats 5 veviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 5o
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
wtilized Tlnrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it
has hecome probable that future waable protiss will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deterred tax habilities and assets are measurad at the tax rates that are expected to apply m the period in which the
Hability 1s seitled or the asset realized, based nn 1ax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporling period.

Seferrad iax assets and fabihves are offset when there is 4 legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets agaii
curtent tax lHabihties and when they relate to income tuxes levied by the same taxation authority and the group iutends
0 settle 1ts current lax assets and habilities on @ net basis.

Oither Income

fntes est Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recogmized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
group and the amount of income can be measured rehably. Interest income is accrued on a tine proportion basis by
ieference to the principal outstanding and ct¥ective interest rate (EIR).

LIR is the tate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
o1 a shorter period, where approprate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income 1s included m
other income in the statement of profit and los-

Other Operating Revenue

Incentive and subsidies are recognized when there 1s reasonable assurance that the group will comply with the conditions

and the incentive will be received and the amount of income can be reliably measured.

Revenue from scrap sales and other ancillary sales s recognized when the control over the goods is transferred to the

customers,
emplovee benefits

(i) Short-term obligations
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All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Short-term employes benefit cbhgations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided. A liability is recogmized for the amount expected to be paid, 1if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount

of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Defined Contribution Plan

The Group’s Employees Provident Fund Organization {EPFQ), Pension Furd and Employees State Insurance (ESI}
are defined contribution plans. Obligations tor contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are rendered by employees,
Prepaid contribution is recognized as an assets to the extent that a cash refund or reduction in future payments is

available
(iii) Defined Benefit Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of Gratuity is considered as defined benefit plan. The hability recognized in the balance
sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date, tegether with
adjustunents for unrecognized actuarial goms or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obhigauon 1y
derermined by actuarial valuation as on the balance sheet date, using the projected unit credit method

Remeasurements, comprising of aciuanal gains and iosses, the effect ol the asset ceiling. excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability (excluding amounts mcluded 1n net interest on the net
defined benefit liability). are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they oceur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit

or loss in subsequent periods.
Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:

(i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment. and
(ii) The date that the group recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability.

The Group recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense i the statement of

profit and loss:

(i) Service cosls comprising current service costs. past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and nonroutine
settlements: and
(11) Net interest expense or income
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2.15 Leases

Leases are accounted for using the principles of recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures as set out in
[ndAS 116-"Leases™.

Group as a lessee

On inception ot a contract, the group assesses whether it contains a lease, A contract contains a lease when it conveys
the right to control the use of an 1dentificd asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The right to use the
asset and the obligation under the lease to make payments are recognized in the Group’s consolidated financial

statements as a right-of-use asset and a lease hability

Lease contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allecates payments in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices and applies the lease accounting model only

to lease components.
Right to use Assets

The right-of-use assct recognized at lease commencement includes the amount of lease liabilities on inittal measurement,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payvments made at or before the commencement date less any lease ncentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated 10 a residual value over the rights-of-use assets estunated useful lite or the
lease term, whichever is lower. Right-of-use assets are also adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities and are
subject to impairment testing. Residual value is reassessed at each reporting date.

Lease liability

The lease liability is ininally measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including “in-substance fixed’ payments) and variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. “In-substance fixed” payments are payments that may,
in form, contain variability but that, in substance. are unavoidable. In calculating the present value of lease payments.
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease term includes periods subject to extension options which the Group is reasonably certain to exercise and excludes
the effect of early termination options where the group is not reasonably certain that it will exercise the option. Minimum
lease payments include the cost of a purchase option if the group 1s reasonably certain it will purchase the underlying asset
after the lease term,

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest on lease
hability and reduced for lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there
is a modification e.g. a change in the lease term. a change in the “in-substance fixed” lease payments or as a result of a

rent review or change in the relevant index or rate.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as an expense in the period over
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2.17

which the evenl or condition that trniggers the payment occurs. In respect of variable leases which guarantez a
minimum amount of rent over the lease term, the guarantezd amount is considered to be an ‘in-substance fixed' lease
payment and included 1 the initial calculation of the lease liability, Payments which are ‘in-substance fixed’ arc

charged against the lease liability.

The Group has opted not o apply the lease accounting model 1o intangible assets. leases of low-value assets or feases
which have a wwrm of less than 12 months. Costs associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straighi-

iine basis over the lease term.
Lease pavments are presanted as follows in the Group’s statement of cash flows:

Y short-term lease paymenis. payments for leases ol low-value assets and variable lease payments that are not
nzluded in the measurement of the lease babshties e presented within cash flows trom operating activities;

i1} payments for the interest element of recognized lease labilities are presented within cash flows from financing

acrivities; and

m) Paymernts for the principal element of recognized lease labilities are presented within cash flows from

Menang senvities,
Group as a lessor

L eases in which the Creoup does not transter substantially all the risks and rewards imcaidental to ownership of an
asser 1s classified as operating leases. Rental sucome arismg s accounted in the statement ot profit and loss over the
lease termes. Inttial direct costs meurred in regoiiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
armount of the leased asset and recognised over the icase term on the same basis as rental income.

Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share are calculated by dividing the net prafit or loss for the year attribatable te equity sharcholders by
the weighted average number of equities shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equities
shares ourstanding during the year is adjusted for cvents such as bonus 1ssue, bonus element in a rights issue, share splir,
and reverse share spht (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equities shares outstanding, withouw

a corresponding change In resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamnings per share. the net profit or loss for the vear attribuiable to equity
sharcholders and the weighted average number of shures outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of all

potentially dilutive equity shares.
Borrowing Costs

Burrowing vost includes interest and other cosis incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and charged
Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of effecrive interest rate (EIR) method. Borrowing cost alse includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment (o the borrowing cost.
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Borrowing costs directly atinibutable to the acquisnion, construction or production of an asset that necessarily rakes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective
asset. Capitalization of Borrowing Cost is suspended and charged to the statement of profit and loss during
extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying asset is interrupted. All other borrowing
costs are recognized as expense in the year in which they occur

2.18 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentarion in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, depost
held at call with financial institutions, other short - werm. highly liguid investments with original maturitics of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings in current liabilities 1 the
balance sheet.

2.19 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities Provisions

A provision 1 recognized when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ol past event, it 1=
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimaie can be made of the amount of the ohhgation. These estimates are reviewed at cach reporting dare and sdjusied 1o
reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the time value of money is material. provisions are discovaied vate a
current pre-tax rafe thar reflects, when appropriaie, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, ti.c increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recogmzed as a finance cost.

Centingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible cbligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more unceitain future events beyond the control of the group or a preseat
obligation that is not recognized because it i1s not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setile the
obhigation. A conungent liability also arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence m
the consolidated tinancial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets
Contingent asseis are not recognized in the consclidated financial statements, Conlingent assels are disclosed n the
consolidated financial statements o the extent it 1s probable that economic benelits will 1low to the Group from such

assels,
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date
2.20 Fair value measurement

The group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value 15 the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a hability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transter the lability takes place either:

(1) In the principal marke! for asset or liability, or
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2.21

(11)In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the group.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market partuicipant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorized within the fair valuc hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowesr level input that 1s significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observablz

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurcment is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the
lowest level input that s significant to fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

For the purposc of fair valuc disclosures, the group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Exceptional items
Items which are material by virtue of their size and nature are disclosed separately as exceptional items to ensure that

consolidated financial statements allow an understanding of the underlying performance of the business in the year and
to facilitate comparison with prior year.

2.22 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are defined as components of an entity where discrete financial information is evaluated regularly by
the chief operating decision maker (CODM) in deciding allocation of resources and in assessing performance,
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2.23 Statement of cash flows

Statements of cash flows is made using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature, any deferral accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expense associated with investing or financing of cash flows. The cash flows [rom operating, financing and investing

activities of the group are segregated.
2.24 Government Grants and Government Assistance

Government grants/subsidies are recognised where there is reasonable assurance thai the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with, Ii the grants/subsidies relate to an expense item, they are recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs. for which they are intended to compensate. are
expensed. The grants, whose primary condifion requires the Company to purchase. construct or otherwise acquire long
tern assets, are recognised as deferred inceme and they are recognised as mcome in equal amounts over the expected
useful lives of the related assets. If the grants/subsidies are related 1o subvention a particular expense, deducted trom
that expense in the year of recognition of govermment grants/ subsidies,”

2.25 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s conselidated financial statements requires management to make judgments. cstimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanving
disclosures, anil the disclosure of contingent liabilities Unceitainty about these assumptions and estimates could result i

outcomes that require a material adjustment (o the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in (uture periods

Judgements
In the process of applving the Group’s accounting policics. management has made the following judgments. which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

a) Recognition of deferred taxes
The extent to which deferred tax asseis can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the future
taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.
b) Impairment of Financial asscts
The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and expected loss
rates. The group uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment

—

calculation, based on the groups past history, exisung market conditions as well as forward looking estimates ar
the end of each reporting period.

¢) Recognition of revenue
The price charged from the customer is treated as consolidated selling price of the goods transferred to the customer
At each balance sheet date, basis the past trends and management judgment, the group assesses the requirement of
recognizing provision against the sales returns for its products and in case, such provision is considered necessary,
the management make adjustment in the revenue However, the actual future outcome may be different from this

judgement.

= "/l'\'\: J
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d) Impairment of non-financial assets

€)

The group assesses at cach reporting date wirether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists. or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required. the group estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An assets recoverabie amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost ot disposal
and 1ts value in use. It is determined for an ndividual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash intlows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or group’s of assets. Where the carrying amount ot an asset or CGU
exceeds 1ts recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down e its recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash [lows are discounted to their present value using a pre-iax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. v
determiining fair value less costs of disposal. recent market transactions are taken into account. T{ no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.

Leases |

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease tenn as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any
option to extend or terminate the lease. if the use ot such option is reasonably certain. The group makes an assessment
on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses whether it 15 reasonably certain that any
options to extend or terminate the contract will be excrcised. In evaluating the lease term. the group considers factors
such as sigificant leasehold improvemenss underraken aver the lease term, costs relating to the terminsiior of the
lease etc. The lease tenin in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current econenie

vircumstances.

2.26 Group’s Estimates and assumptions

The key assumpnions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that huve

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the neat

financial year. are described below. The group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the

consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developnients.

however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the group. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Taxes

b

—

Uncertaintics exist with respect to the terpretation of complex tax regulations. changes in tax laws, and the amount
and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and
complexity of existing contractual agreements. difterences ansing between the actual results and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense alrcady
recorded. The group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is bascd on
various factors, such as experience of previcus tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority

Gratuity benefit

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e, Granirty benefu) 1s determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuaiion
involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases. mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the
complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
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highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date In determining
the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of long-term government bonds with
extrapolated maturity corresponding to the ¢xpected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate 1s
based on Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published
statistics (i.e. TALM 2012-14 Ulttmate). These assumptions translate into an average life expectancy in years af
retirement age. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates. Further

details about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis, are given in Note 40,

¢) Fair value measurement of financial instrument
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liahilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value 1s measured using valuation techniques including the
Discounted Cash Flow {DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment i1s required m establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk. credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors

could aftect the reported fair value of financial instruments,

d) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected vsetnl life
and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the group’s assers are
determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at cach [Inanciu! vem

end. I'or managements estimates on useful life of assets para no 2.07 of the accounting policy.
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4 {a) Intangible Assets

Particulars Software Total
Gross carrying value

As at April 01, 2023 17.46 17.46
Additions 0.06 0.06
Dispusals -

As at March 31, 2024 17.52 17.52
Additions -
Disposals - -
As at March 31,2025 17.52 17.52
Accumulated Amortization

As at April 01, 2023 0.58 0.58
Amortized during the yeai 363 363
Disposals - "
As at March 31, 2024 4.21 4.21
Amortized during the year 3.62 362
Disposals = -
As at March 31,2025 7.83 7.83
Net carrying value 4

As at March 31,2025 9.69 9.69
As at March 31, 2024 13.31 13.31
4{a)(i}. There are no adjustments to Intangible assets en account of borrowing costs and exchange differences *
4 (b) Right of Use Assets o

Particulars Plant & Machinery Building Total
Gross carrying value

As at April 01, 2023 - 31.71 31.71
Additions - 2.78 2.79
Delenons (2.32) (2.32)
Exchange fluctuation - 0.47 0.47
As at March 31, 2024 - 32.65 32,65
Additions 175.40 11.88 187.28
Dieletions - - -
Exchange fluctuation - 0.04 0.04
As at March 31,2025 175.40 44.57 219.97
Accumulated Depreciation -
As at April 01, 2023 - 15.92 15.92
Charge for the year 13.01 13.01
Deletions (1.05) (1.05)
As at March 31, 2024 - 27.88 27.88
Charge for the year 31.46 5.53 * 36.99
Deletions - E =
As at March 31,2025 31.46 33.41 64.87
Net carrying value

As at March 31,2025 143,94 11.16 155.10
As at March 31, 2024 - 4.77 4.77
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5 Other fi ial assets . -
Farticulars As at As at
March 21,2035  March 31, 2029
Non Current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Carried at amortized cost
Secunty deposits 28.70 27 48
Retention Meney 47108 42873
Deposits with banks having g maturity of more than |2 months (refer note 5(i) below) 470,12 404.57
Total other financial assets 971.88 B60.78
Note -
5.{i) Deposits inchudes lien on bank deposits against bank guaramees given for the prajeas of Rs 470 12 millions as at March 31, 2025 (March 31,2024 Rs 404 57
millions)

5 (i) Abuve carrying value of deposits with bank are subject te n charge to-secure the group™s secured borrowings, (refer note 19 and 22)
6 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net)

Particulars ' As As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets o
Paost retirement benefits 2207 027
Impact on account of Leases |iabiity a740 121
Exchange differences m translanng the financial statements of foreign aperations - 327
Other temparary difference 3625 -
(A} 85.72 24.75
Deferred tax liabilities
Impast on account of Right of Use Assets 36384 120
Exchange diife ces N the fi | stat of foreign vperations = -
Temporary difference in carrying values of property. plant & equip & ble assets b books 5345 17 52
of accounts and for tax purposes
Other temperary difference o o 046 043
o (8] 90.75 19,15
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (A - B) 4.97 5.50
7 Other assets = — e e = e =
Particulars . As at As at
T . March31,2025  March 31, 2024
Capital advances 4261 5.58
Secunty Deposics 043 -
Prepaid expensss o 17 g4 =
Total Other non-current assets 0.93 9.58
IE.
{The Inventory is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value)
_Project material (including gands in tranat) — I . 227971 1,423 68
Total Inventories 2,513.60 1,635.99

Note: Inventaries af Project matenais of the Group have been hypothecated to secure borrowings af the Group. (refer note 18 and 22)
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8 Investments
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Current

a) Investments-Quoted

Mutua! funds at fair value through prefit and loss irefer note 44 (c)) 802 7.93
Total investments B.02 7.73
{a} Aggregate smount of quoted investments and market value thereol 802 773
(b) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and cost thereof #20 520
(<} Aggregate cost amount of unquoted investments = -
(d} Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments E &
Details of mutual fund units held by the group:
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Baroda BNP Pacibas Flexi Cap fund Regular Growth [FX-RC-G) Linlts Lbsclurg 10288450 ha98420
Fair Value P 15T 1,49
Barcda BNP Paribas Mult Asset fund Regular Growth (MA-RG G) cinite {Assphite) gL LiaAada0
Fair Value 1.53 141
Barcda BNF Paribas Small Cap Fund Regular Growth (SC-RG-G) Upits (Arsaluts) &&30m1.50 24397150
. Fair Value 193 185
Baroda BNP Paribes Value Fund Regular Growth [VF-RG-G} Sl sl gl 142962850
Fair Value 199 1.98
Total Fair Value 8.02 7.73
10 Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables: (Carried at Amaortized Cost) :
Trade Receivables - Conshdered Good Secured E =
Trade Recelvables - Unsecured. considered good 544430 3,285.69
Trade Receivables which have sigmiicam increase In eredit gk s = -
Total trade receivables ) 5.444.30 3,295.69
Less, Allowance for credil [nsses {133 50) [06.23]
Total trade receivables (net) 5,310.40 3,229.46
Notes
a) All trade receivables of Group have been hypothecated to securs bormowings of the Group. (refer note 19 and 22}
b) For amount due from refatéd pany melfer note 38
Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at March 31,2025 & ding for following periods from date of t cti Tatal
Less than 6 months € menths - 1 year 1-2years T 1.3 years More than 3 years
Undispuied Trade receivables - dered good 4,103.53 607.03 124.01 494749 E 00 5,337.36
Undisputed Trade receivables - which have signiflcant increage in credin risk - - - - - =
Unidh d Trade recelvables - credit impaired - - . 3 " )
Digputed Trade receivables - considered good . - = - 10694 106.94
Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant inerease in credir risk - = - - - -
Disputed Trade iviibles - credit impaired = = - - - -
_Total I 4,103.53 607.03 124.01 494.79 114.94 5,444.30
Less: Allowance for eredit loszes {133.90)
Net Trade receivables 5,310.40
As at March 31, 2024 [¢] ding for foll EP ds from date of tr: cti Total
Less than 6 months 6 months - | year 1-2years 2- 3 years More than 3 years
Undisp Trade r bles - idered gond 455731 BZO5 47170 6603 10.76 3,188.75
Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in eredit risk - - " N R .
Undisputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - . = = a
Digputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - 106.94 106.34
Disputed Trade receivables - which have significant increase in credit nsk - = = - - -
Disputed Trade recevables - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 2,5587.31 B82.95 471.70 66.03 117.70 3,295.69
Less: Allowance for credit losses (66.23)
Net Trade ivabl 3,229.46
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11 {a) Cash and cash equivalents o
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Balances with banks: =
= In current accounts 821.51 507 66
Cash on hand w 0.72 12.27
Total cash and cash equivalents 823.23 519.93
11 (b} Other bank bal _
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Deposits with banks having remaining maturity less than 12 months { refer note below] 1,696,310 985 39
Total Other bank bal - 1,696.90 985.39
11 (b){i} Deposus includes lien un bank deposits against bank guarantess given for the projects of Rs. 1696 90 millions as at March 31.2025
(March 31 2674 Rs. 385,39 millicns)
11 (bifii) Above carrying value of other bank balances are subject to a charge to secure the group's secured burrowings. (refer note 18 and 22).
12 Loans I o
. As at As at
Partizulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Unsecured, lered good unless otherwise stated

13

14

15

Carried at amortized cost
Loans o related parties®

- To Enterprises where key managerial personnal and their close members exercise significant i - 116 62
Loans to others s
Tatal loans - 116.62
* Include interest on such |oan {refer note 38)

Other financial assets T i

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Unsecured, idered good unless otherwise stated

Carried at amortized cost

Security deposits 81.66 58.82
Intevest Accrued on Bank deposits 12,24 10.96
Export benefits receivables 3.92 3.35
Cther receivables - 21,64
Total Other financial assets 97.82 134.77
Current tax Assets (Net)
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
_Income tex receivable (net of provision) 111.75 30.29
Total current tax Assets (Net) 111.75 30.39
Other current assets L
Particulars B As at As at

March 31,2025

March 31, 2024

Unsecured considered good

Prepaid expenses 23479 €6 9€
Balance with statutory / government authorities 112 38.11
Advance to suppliers 328.88 296,12
Unbilled Revenue 1.135.87 988,80
Advance to employees A5y g B.39
Other receivables® 116.07 10p.80
Total Other current assets 1,817.90 1,515.18

* Includes balances with related parties (refer note 38}
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VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identity Number (CIN):U45201DL1987PLC128579

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

{All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

17 Other equity

Securities premium (A) Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2023 115.83
Movement during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 115,83
Movement during the year '__f_1_l‘§__f_;_'i_
Balance as at March 31,2025 -
Retained earnings (B) An;-:q_n__;_____
Balance as at April 01, 2023 3,258.50
Profit for the year T 143382
Add: Other comprehensive income, net of income tax 2.19
Less : Dividend paid during the year (2.21)
Less  Appropriation to General Reserve (80.00}
Balance as at March 31, 2024 _ 4,612.30
Profit foi the year T 203415
Add: Other comprehensive income, net of income tax 31
Less : Appropriation to General Reserve i
Balance as at March 31,2025 E,GSBTZ-[!_
Foreign currency translation reserve (C) Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2023 1.32
Add:-Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of loreign operations, net of income tax (9 1;5
Lesg-Transferred to retained earnings #
Balance as at March 31, 2024 (8.41)
Add -Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations. net of income tax 42.85
Less:-Transferred to relained earnings ~ &
Balance as at March 31,2025 _ 3444
General Reserve (D)

Balance as at April 01, 2023 249.00
Add . Transferred from Retained Earnings _____B0.0o
Balance as at March 31, 2024 329.00
Add - Transferred from Retained Earnings -
Less: Utilised for Issue of Bonus Shares (33 62)
Balance as at March 31,2025 295.38
Total other equity (A+B+C+D) Amount
Balance as at March 31,2025 6,980.01
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,048.72

*For details of restatement of opening balances of other equity refer annexure VII

Nature and purpose of reserves

Securities Premium :

Securities Premium is credited when shares are issued at premium. It is utilized in accordance with the provisions of Act, to issue bonus shares, to provide for
premium on redemption of shares, write-off equity related expenses ke underwriting cost ete

Retained Earnings :
Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the Group which can be distributed to its equity shareholders in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013,

General reserve :
General Reserve is created out of the profits earned by the Company by way of transfer from surplus in the statement of profit and loss, The Company can use
this reserve for payment of dividend, issue of bonus shares and fully / partly paid-up equity shares

Foreign currency translation reserve :
The exchange differences arising from the translation of financial statements of foreign branches and a subsidiary with functional currency other than Indian
Rupee is recognised in other comprehensive income and is presented within equity in the foreign currency translation reserve,
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VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED

Corporate Identity Number {CIN):U45201DL1887PLC128579

Naotes fi ing part of the C idated cial §
All amounts in Indian
20 Lease liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Non Current
L ease liabilities = 9258 T
Total Non Current Lease liabilities 92.88 -
(Refer note 41 far details)
21 Provisions
Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Non Current
Provision for employee t fi
Provision for gratuity (refer note 35) 44.17 5555
Provisions for leave benefits {refer note 38) 31.63 14 84
Total Non Current Provisions 7580 70.39
22 Current borrowings
Particulars As at As at
= B . _ March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Secured
Cash credit/working capital lnans from banks 208155 1,407 50
Current maturities of long term borrawings {refer note na 19) 1.614.58 1074 18
Unsecured '
-From related parties® - 11,10
-From ather 64 B3 11021
Total current barrowi 4,370.76 2,603.39

* (Refer note 38 for getatls of loans from releted parties)

Note:
1 Nature of security and terms of borrowings :

" As on March 31, 2025

Lenders Nams Type of Loan

As at 31.03.2025

Interest Type

Rate of Interest

Securi

Fersonal Cuarantés

ity
Enrtusie charge on Fixed depos s and

Fons Bane Limiied Warking Copitai 300 01 Flaating T a9 © in B.65 U |Linked MrVannaer Garg Aod Mr Vivek
Diemund Loan . with Repal par-pasni clirent as: Garg
Hank of Barcda Caah credits 599 Flaating T%r MCLR +0 250 5P with | Hypothecation of current assels & Fieed Personal Guarante
manthly red ot anmonl rest Daposits & Persanal ansits of disector My Varindar Kumar Garg , Mz
group companics & thor relatives Sushma Garg , Mr Vivek Gorg, Mys
Burbhi Agarwal
Corporate Guarantes :
N1£s Surbhy etals (ndiay Pyt Lad,
| | /s Surbhi Art World
| M/ Varndera & Company
| M/ Voanndera Developers &
L Infrastructure Pyl Led,
HDFC Bank inuited Ve Capitsl FEEETD Flnaung T TR e Linked With 3 Hypothecanon 0f company's entire sock of| M1 Varmder Kumar Garg | Mrs
| Demand Loan TManths Hepol raw materdaly, WP, lininshed goods Sushma Gorg. My Vivok Garg
[consumables stores spares et equitable
af al
| propemies and 10% cash margin by way of
B o = f2 . o R |F3R with lein of HIFC Bank Ltd,
E e Ldrmited arkeing Capital 55 00 . Tioating Linked with 381 MIBOfE Hypothecauan an Fixed deposis and Mr Varinder Kumar Garg and Mr
Demand Loon Vivek Carg
Fedeeal Bank Limited Working Capial 502060 Floanng B 2570 | Linked With Hepa) Hypobecanon on Fied dogaats and T Varnder Rumar Oarg, Mo
| Memond Loan SUrrent Bsseis Siahma Garg , Me Vivek Garg
I CAA Pank Limted Worang Capital TR 0l Floatirtg 0.0 [ Linked With Rapaj HAypothecation on Fioced deposats and Nir vannder Kumiat Garg, Mirs
T e - » currcht oAt E Sughma Gug M1 Vivek Gag |
Katnk Manindra Bank Limiced Workong Capital AS0.00 Floating A,50%% | Linked With fiepog Fliypothécation an Fixed deposita and Mr. Vannder K Lanrg. Mis
Demand Loan - current asets Sushma Garg . Mr Vivek Garg
Tes Bank Linited Working Capital 28000 Floating Limked with T-Batl Freed depaairi carent saa i Baultabls Wir, Varin s Eslmiar Gargand Mr
TRtk osn mongage on Residential Praperty Vel Garg
- Taih credits R | Floating 3 Month e —— Muhablu. M- Vasinder Kumar Garg and Mr
montgage on Residentlsl Froperty yovEk Sote
Az on March 31, 2025
Lender's Name e of Loan As at 31.03,2025 Interest Type Rite of Interest Security
Myt Sohiions Private Linated [ Ban o ) Unaetired

Sxrhenge of Indla {FOEILT Bill Dizcer

F208
FA0 U8




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED
Corporate [dentity Number (CIN):U45201DL188TPLC128579
Notes forming part of the C. lidated Fi ial Stat 1

{All amo in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

As on March 31, 2024
Lender's Name Type of Loan As at 31-03-2024 1 Type Rate of Interest Security Personal Guarantee
Aois Banik Limitsd Warking Capital Ana.o6 Floating T30 %t 9 45% Exclugive charge on Fixed deposits and Mr, Vaninder Garg And Mr Vivek
— Demand Loan I— I | pan-pAssu curment agsets | Gay
Cash credits 30724 1 ¥r MCLR =0 with | Hypothecation of current assets & Fixed |Personal Guarantee:
manthly rest at annual rest Dieposits & Personal assets of dirsctor, Mr Vannder Kumar Garg . Mrs
group companies & thelr relatives Sushma Garg . Mr Vivek Garg, Mrs
Surshi Agarwal
. Corporate Guarantee :
BenicotBarads M /5 Surbhi Metals {Tndia) Pyt Lid,
M/s Surthi Arc Wanld,
M/s Varindera & Company,
M /s Varindera Developers &
Infrastruciure Pl Ltd,
HDFE Bank Limited Working Capital 49.78 Fixed 9.09% Hypothecation of company’s entire stock of | Mz Varnder Kumar Garg  Mrs
LDemand Loan raw materiala, WIF, finished goods, Sushma Garg . Mr. Vivek Garg
. ; Cagh credits 31751 Floating consumables stores spares etc., equitable
HARC Ak Lited E— Linked With 3 M T-8ill margage of eommercial & Residential |
Teistiisind Baidk Linines! Waorlang Capital 5000 Floating Linked with 30 MIBOR Hypathecation on Fixed deposits and Mr. Varinder Kuma.! Garg and Mr
Demand Laan % — CurEnt assets Vivek Garg
Viss B . Waerlang Capital 240,00 Floating Linked with T-2ill Fixed deposits, current assets & Equitable | Mr Vannder Kumiar Garg and Mr
es Bank Limited B :
= : Demand Loan I mortgage on Resdential Property Vivek Garg
Cash credis 5333 Floanng 3 Month TEill +201%8P | Fixed deposits. current assers & Equitable | Mr Vannder Kumar Garg and Mr
Yes Bank Limniwed N
mortgage on lal Properry Wivek Garg ]
As on March 31, 2024___
Lender's Name Type of Loan | As at 31.03-2024 Interest Type Rate of L Security Tenure
Surbht Metal Tndia Pyt Lid Corporate Loan | il | Fixed 8005 Unsecured Rapayable On demend
Mynd Salurions Frivate Limited Bill Dhseounung | 100.32  Figed i 787 to T.95% Unsecured Repayable On Tenure Expiry
Receivable Exchange of Incia (RXIL]|  Bill Discounting | 989 Fixed 7.99% Unsecured fiepayable On Tenure Expiry |

2 There have been no vanation in the quarterly returns-aid statement of current assels flled by the Company with hakers with regards to working capital limit and eash credit facil availed from banks




VARINDERA CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED
Corporate ldentity Number (CIN):U45201DL1987PLC128579
Notes forming part of the C lidated Fi jal Stat,

(All amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)

23 Lease liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Current
Lease lizbilities — e e h4.43 479
Total Lease liabilities £4.23 4.78

(Refer note 41 for detals)

24 Trade payables S

Farticulars As at Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Carried at amortised cost

Tonal outstanding dues of mucro enterprises and small enterprises 630,80 o131
Taral ding dues of ereditors other than micro enterpnses and small enterprises® 1,661.84 63538
Total Trade payables B % 2,292.64 1,336,69

* dacludes bafonces with reloted parties frefer ot 38/

Notes

a Infurmation as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Med Enterprises D , Acl 2006 (MSMED Aet) fur the year ended is given below. Thiz information has been determined 1o the
extent such parties have been :der‘;gi\_ef an the basis of information svaiiable with the Gioup,
Farticulars As at As at

- o o e March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

-Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 630.80 i
accounting year
-Imterest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end ot the 346 10 0%
scoownting year
~The amount of mteresi paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the - F-

MSMED Act. 2006 aieng with the amounts of the payment made o the

supplier bevond the appointad day dunng 2ach accounting year

The ametint af interest due and payabiz for the penod of dela s in 2 >
making payment {which has been paid but beyond the appomted day

during the year) but without adding th= interest specified undes the

MSMED Act. 2006)

The-amout of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end o the =

afLounling year

~The amount of urther nterest remanmg due antd payable sven m the 1882 1536
succeeding vears, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually

paid 1 the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowanee 3. a deduetbla

erpenditure urdor section 23 of the MEMED Acg, 20086,

24.1 Trade payable ageing schedul -
As at March 31,2025 o [¢] ding for following periods from date of transactions Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More thand years
N ——— —— _— Fear
MSME &30.27 ou o4l - B30.7%
Onhers 1,503 53 592 152 40 - 1.661.85
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
Disputea dues - Others - = = - s
Tatal 2,133.80 6.03 152.81 = 2,202.64
As at March 31, 2024 R o O ding for following periods from date of transactions Total
Less than 1 1-2 years 23 years More than3 years
ey — year
MSME 430,16 208.39 2077 4198 70151
Others 390.24 45.13 0.01 = 635 38
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
Digputed ducs - Others - - - - -

Total 1,020 40 253.52 20.78 41.99 1,336.69
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5

7

Other financial liabiliti

B As at As at

_Total current provisi

Particulars

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current
Imerest Accrued but not due 17.02 583
Inerest an MSME dues 1882 536
Interest Accrued on loan from related parties - L7g
Linbility toward staff and workers ESF.TE 12458
Capita! Creditors 14.60 8598
Security Deposit - 009
Other payable* S §31.62 38289
Total other financial habilities 733.78 625.43
* Includes befonces with related porties {rejer noie 33)
Other current liabilities o _—
Particulars As at As at

R March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Staratory dues peyable o
Liability towsrds Corporare socsl responsibilicy [refer nate 44)

- S 5617

Advance received from custemers g = 1 448.75 :

Total other current liahilities = N 544.92 155.?3_

Provisions i3 - -

Particulars As at As at
L = March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Current

Frovision for employee benefits
FProvigien for granuity  (refer note 39)
Provisions for leave benefits {refer note 38)

10,47 345
- S > Lat o o - 07D
11,91 10.15
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Notes forming part of the C lidated Financial §
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28 Revenue from operations
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of services
Canstruction ncome 19,731 44 13.797.21
Other operating revenue
Serap Sales 11139 78:37
Export incentives 1593 15.70
Total Revenue from Dperm‘_mls 19,858.76 “’“9‘3:2:
Notes to revenue from contracts with customers;
a) Timing of rendering of services - F bligation satisfied over time
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of services = 19.731.44 13.7497.21
Total 19,731.44 13,797.21
b) Revenue by location of
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
India 15.536.12 10,450 049
Quiside India 4,18532 3.307.12
Total revenue from contract with customers 19,731.44 13,797.21
c) R iliation of recognized in C lidated stat t of profit and loss with contracted price
Farticulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Revenue as per contracted price 18,731 44 1379721
Less; adjustment on account of price varation iz *
Total 19,731.44 13,797.21
d) Contract Balances: —
Particulars Asg at As at
i March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Contract Assels o -
Trade Receivables (refer nute 10} 5.310.40 3.229.46
Unbilled Revenue (refer note 15) 113587 598 80
Retention Money {refer note 5) 472.06 428.73
Contract Liabilities
488.75 12002

fAdvance recewved from customers {refer note 26)

A contract liabilities 15 the obligation to transfer goods or services 1o a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If 4 customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, & contract
liability 15 recogmzed when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is zarlisr). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the

Group performs under the contract.

29 Other income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
* March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income on bank deposits 102.00 Te11
Interest income from related parties (refer note 38) 5.535 £.435
Interest unwinding on secunity deposits 010 012
Frofit on szle of investment property - 1377
Fair value Gain on mutual funds .30 1.57
WNer gain on foreign currency transactions and translarions 156.42 25.93
Miscellanesus Income 19.52 2614
Total Other income 284.44 150.53
30{a) Cost of materials d
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inventory of construction materials and land parcels at the beginning of the year 1.635.30 1,027.26
Agd: Purchase of construction matenal and land parcels 10,767 42 7.612.00
12,403.41 8,639.26
Less: Inventory of construction 1 Is and land parcels at the end of the year {2,513 60) {1.635.33)
Cost of materials d 9,889.81 7,003.27
30(b) Construction expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Labsur cess charges 16804 109,56
Labour charges 4.016.66 2,496 23
Other construction xpenses BE6 03 565.95
Taotal Construction expenses 4,851.83 3,171.74
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Notes forming part of the C lidated Fi ial Stat ts

(Al ts in Indian Rup in millions, unless otherwise stated)

31 Employee benefits expense
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Salary, wages and bonus 1,156.01 88136
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 39) 57.51 4231
Gratuity Expenses (refer note 38) 2842 2075
Stafl welfare expenses 96.18 7278
Total Employee benefits expense 1,338.12 1,017.20

32 Finance costs o o
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest on borrowings ) 404 69 253 60
Interest on lease liabilities : 647 10
Other Borrowing Costs
- Bank Guarantee charges 3604 43.22
- Processing Fee 2088 15.23
- Other charges s 19.04 E2.73
Total Finance costs - 496.12 325.79

33 Depreciation and amortization expenses

Particulars For ti'gr—ear ended For the year ended
. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (refer note 3(z)) 216.50 169.85
Depreciation on investment property irefer note 3(b)) 0.51 187
Amwortization on intangible assets (refer note 4 (a)) 3.62 3163
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets {refer note 4(k)) 36.99 13.01
Total Depreciation and amortization expenses 258.02 188.36

34 Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Rent Expenses (refer note 41} 38.04 .12
Rates & Taxes 105.93 61.89
Travelling and Conveyance expenses 97.67 51.01
Utility Expenses 887 777
Security Charges 26.64 1733
Office expenses 16.47 1315
Legal and professional expenses 136,36 41.50
Payment to suditor (refer note 35} 596 524
Contribution to political parties - 20,00
Repair & Maintenance Expenses

- athers 2621 16.4¢
Insurance Charges 7338 44.40
Corporate Sccial Responsibility Expenditure {refer note 49) 2162 1582
Printing and Stationery 4.00 4.15
Loss on discard of property, plant and equipments 1.13 48.87
Director Sitting Fee 1.05 -
Vehicle Running and Maintenance 18.46 13.03
Less on sale of property, plant ana equipments - 074
Provision for expected credit loss 67.66 66.23
Miscellaneous Expenses - o 23.61 1118

Total Other expenses 673.66 450.00
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35 P to auditor {exclusive of taxes)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
As auditor:
Audit fee 498 4.98
Certification services .76 026
Reimbursement of expenses a2 -
Total 5.96 5.24
36 Income tax
The company (s subject to income tax in India on the basis of financial statements, Business loss can be carried forward for a masimumn period of eight L years diately ding the
assessment year to which the loss pertains. Unabsorbed depreciation can be carried forward for an indefinite period
Tax expenses
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31. 2024
Income tax recognized in Profit & Loss Account
Current tax 603.57 456,26
Deferred tax expense / (credit) (1.82) (6.63)
Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax expense/{credit) on items of OCI 1.26 {2.53)
Total taxes 603.01 447,10
Reconciliation of taxes to the amount computed by applying the statutory income rax rate to the income before taxes is summarized below:
Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before taxes 2,635.64 1.883.45
Applicable tax rates in [ndia 25:168% 25.168%
Computed rax charge 663 34 47403
Deferred tax expense / {credit) (0 56) [9.16}
Non-deductible exnense 35.86 4016
Allowakble Expenses {42.86) {18.53)
Relief under double taxation avoldance agreements? {B0.92) (64.57)
Other Adjustments 81§ 25.17
Total Tax exp 603.01 447,10
Total income tax expense recognized in Profit and Loss 603.01 447.10

a7

* The company is entitled to a rebate for taxes paid to the Government of Mauritius on behalf of the company’s branch loeated in Mauntius, which is recognized as a credit under the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1981 m India. This rebate is offscted againat the company's tax expenses

Eamings per share ('EPS’)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the restated conschdated profit / loss tor the year attributable 1o equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of eguity shares
cutstanding during the year, Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative 1o a fully paid equity share
during the repaorting period.

Diluted EFS amounts are caleulated by dividing the restared consolidated profit ortributable ta equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus
the weighted average nuinber of equity shares that would be jssued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations;

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Face value of equily shares (Rs per sharej* 1.60 100.00
Revised face value of eguity shares post split {Rs per share)* 1.00 1.00
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs ) (A) 203415 1.433.82
Weghted average number of equity shares used for computing EF5 (basic) (B) 15,49.80.000 55,350
Impact of share split effected after March 31, 2024 (each share of face value Rs 100 split into 100 shares of 15,49.80.000 55.35.000
face value of Rs 1 each)* (Nos)
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares post split 15,49,80,000 55,35,000
Impact of bonus issue effected after March 31, 2024 (allotment of 14,94.45 000 bonus shares at face value of Rs 1 each)* - 14,54 45.000
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares post sphit and bonus used as denomunator in calculating Basic Earnings Per Share (C) 15,49,80,000 15,43,80,000
EPS - basic (A/C) (Rs) 13.13 9.25
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares post split and bonus used as deneminator in caleulating Diluted Earnings Per Share (D) 15,49.80.000 15,49.80,000
M!D} {Rs) 13.13 9.25

* Face value reduced from Rs. 100 to Rs. | refer note - 16
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38 Related party t ti

a) Names of related parties and d
Description of relationship
Jointly Controlled Operations ('JCO') (where transactions have taken place)*

ption of relati hip

Enterprises where key managerial personnel or their close bers
influence (where transactions bave taken place)

Key managerial personnel (| KMP")

Close s of Key

Independent Directors

n

(i} Summary of tr ions with above related parties are as fallows:

Particulars

gerial personnel (where transactions have taken nlace)

Summary of transactions and outstanding balances with above related parties are as

Name of related parties
1) ALTIS-VCL OV

2} Varindera Censtructions Ltd VRC Constructions {I) Pvt Ltd {JV)

3) VRC-VCL-S&P JV
4) VCL-SOM-JV

1} Surbiu Metal India Pyt Lid.
2] Vivek Infraprojecrs Pyt Lrd
3) NAS Buildcon Private Limited

1} Varindera Developers and Infrastructure Private Limited (w.r f August 3, 2022)

5) Varindra & Co
=) Som Prajects Private Limited (till July 06, 2024)
i Somansion Estares Private Limited (tll July 08, 2024)
4) Vanndera Construction [Overseas) Limited
%) Surbhy At Waorid

1) Varinder Kumar Garg (Managing Director till July 5, 2024 Chairman we f July £ 2024)
4} Vivek Garg (Whole Time Director il July 5, 2024, Managing Director wel July &, 2024}

1} sushma Garg (Whole Time Directar)
4} Surbhi /. garwal {Director) (tdl May 4, 2024;
5} Vikas Jain (CFO) fwed September 29, 2023)

i} Anurag Srivestava (Company Secretary) fw.e f February 1, 2024)

Ferson Name Relationship
Arxita Garg Spouse of KMP
Baijeet Sharma (nill July 08, 2024) Father of KMP
1) Kuljie singh Popli (w e.f June 07, 2024)
2 Neeru Abral (wee T August 29, 2024}
) Vinod Kumar {w.e.[ June 07, 2024)
4) Nitin Kaushal (till Tuly U, 2024)
5) Mayank Garg ((tll July 08, 2024)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 _

March 31, 2024

ation o key rial ;:';_:sonnel and their close members #
Jarinder Kumar Uarg

Sushma Garg

Vivek Garg

Ankita Garg

Baljeet Sharma

Vikas Jain

Anurag Snivasrav

Sales of goods and services to,;

Varindera Developers and Infrastructure Prvate Lomited
ALTIS-VCL IV

Varindera Constructions Lid VRC Constructions (1) vt Led (JV)
VRC-VCL-S&P JV

VEL-SaM-IV

NAS Buildeon Private Linited

Purchase of goods & Services from-
NAS Buldcon Private Limied

Lease Rent Expense.
INAS Buildcon Private Limited

21,64 46.70
741 41.35
19.88 4585
5.86 18 40
1.49 504
470 174
4,58 0 55
70.56 161,13
104
750.37 8617
. 1,048 86
3589 46.58
4.50 -
1ha6 4.86
801.06 1,786.47
_ 422
- 4.22 3
3559 =

35.59
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Reimk t for exp paid on behalf of:

Varindera Developers & Infrastructure Pyt Lid.

Vivek Infraprojects Put. Ltd.

Varindra & Co.

NAS Buildean Private Limited

ALTIS-VCL JV

Varindera Constructions Ltd VRC Constructions (1) Pvt Ltd [}
VRC-VCL-5&FP JV

Surbhi Art World

VCL-50M-JV

Reimb for exg paid on behalf of company by:
Varinder Kumar Garg

Vivek Garg

Sale of property to key managerial personnel:
Varinder Kumar Garg
Sushma Garg

Security deposits received:
Varindera Construction (Overseas) Limited

Loan given to the related party:

Varindera Developers & Infrastructure Pyt Ltd
NAS Buildeon Private Limited

Som Projects Private Limited

VCL-50M-JV

Loan taken from the related party:
Surbhi Metal India Pyt {1d.

Varinder Kumar Garg

Sushma Garg

Som Projects Privare Limited

Vivek Infraprojects Put, Lid

NAS Bulldeon Private Limited

Repayment by related party for loan given:
Varindera Developers & Infrastructure Pvt, Lid.
Vivek Infraprojects Pvi, Lid.

Som Projects Private Limited

Semansion Estates Private Limited

NAS Buildcen Private Limited

VCL-SOM-JV

Repayment to related party for loan taken:
Surbhi Metal India Pvt. Lid.

Varinder Kumar Garg

Sushma Garg

Som Projects Privare Limited

Vivek Infraprojects Pvt Ltd

NAS Buildcon Private Limited

Interest income on loan given tao:
Varindera Developers 8 Infrastructure Pyt Led
NAS Buildeon Private Limited

Vivek Infraprejects Pvt. Lid.

Som Projects Private Limited

Somansion Estates Private Limited
VCL-SCM-IV

Interest expense on loan taken from:
Surbhi Metal India Pyt Lid.

Vivek Infraprojects Pyt Ltd.

NAS Buildeon Private Limited

Sitting fees to independent directors

- 10 05
0.01 087
- 0.05
0.03 .
61.58 55.78
511 4463
274 1.79
- 17.09
456 -
74.03 130.26
0.18
0.01 -
0.19 =
2690
: 2690
- 53.80
. 0.4
F " 0,46
7.12 -
4575 hi4
500 12.00
30 00 2
138.87 89.24
4.50 1114
2738
248
- 50.00
10.00 .
350.00 E
364 .50 Bz 16
4708 =
1.30 18 50
5.61 13.00
0.51 -
176.05 .
3066 |
261.22 31.50
18.45 -
27.38
- 3 6B
- 5000
1000 -
36173 =
380.18 B81.06
3.04 284
242 098
- 145
0.16 051
. 057
0.73 .
6.35 6.45
= .99
002
13.03 .
13.05 0.99
1.05 z
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(Al ts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
(i) 8 y of ding bal with above related parties are as follows:
Farticulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
A O ding payable bal
Ankita Garg 047 M
Sushma Garg 1.02 939
Varinder Kumar Garg 137 775
Vivek Garg U774 a0s
Surbhi Metal India Pvt, Led. - 12.80
Vikas Jain 038 031
Anurag Srivastava 0.22 .22
Baljeet Sharma - 347
Varindera Construction {Overseas) Limited 2.62 258
6.72 44.27
B. Receivable Balances from:
NAS Buildeon Private Limited 4:38 723
Vanndera Developers & Infrastructure Pvr Ltd : 0.15
ALTIS-VCL IV 215 64 122.96
Varindera Constructions Lid VRC Constructions {I) Pyt Led (JV) 4.1 127 59
VRC-VCL-5&P JV 47 40 776
VCL-3OM-1V 1162 -
303.25 26568
C. Qutstanding balance of loan /advances given to (including accrued interest):
Vivek Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd, ~ 130
Varindera Developers & Infrastiucrure Pyt Lid. - 372z
NAS Buildeon Private Limitea - iz
Som Prajects Private Limited - .46
Somansion Estaies Private Limited 0.52
- 116.62

Naote:

" Al the transeciions with Jointly Controlled Goerations and corresponding batances payable {recemvabie have been disclosed at pross value before slimimation

# The remuneration to the key managerial perstanel and their clage members does not inclide the prowsiont m:

sde for gratuity us the same s determined om an acmiarial basis for the Company as o whole
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39 Gratuity and other post-employment benefits plans

i

4} Defined contribution plan
The Group's cantribution te provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance and other funds are considered as defined eontributisn plans. The contributions are charged to the Consolidated statemen| of profit
and loss as they accrue. Contributions to pravident fund, Employees’ Stale Insurance and other funds included in employee benefits expense (refer note 31) are 25 under

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contribution to

-Provident Fund 5517 3931

-Employee state insurance 234 209

b) Defined benefit plans
The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Graluity Act 1972 Under the act, every smployee who has completed five years or more of service gets
gratuity on departure at 13 days salary {last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The level of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age The

Gratuity plan is unfunded
The fellowing tables summanse the components of net benefi: expense recognized in the Restated Consolidated statement of profil or loss and amounts recognized in the Restated Consolidated balance

sheet for gratuity benefit

i. Exp { gnized in the C lidated st t of profit and loss)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current service cost 2372 1718
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 470 357
Expense included in Consolidated statement of profit and loss 28.42 20.75
ii. Remeasurement (gains)/ loss recognized in other prehensive i
Particulars SRR " Forthe year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
“Actuanal {gain)/ logs un obligations arising froem changes in experience (7.30) [5.18)
adjustments
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations arising from changes in demographic - -
assumphions
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations arising from changes in financial 106 235
assumptions .

.Actua_rial !Eain!! loss recognized l;l aC 5.24 {2.93}

. Net defined benefit (asset)/ lability

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Nelined benelit obiigation 87.66 B5.00

Fair value of plan assets (33.03 -

_LAsut! / liability recognized in the balance sheet 54.63 65.00

iv. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are

as follows: o
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Opening defined benefit obligation 6301 4746
Current service eost 23.72 17.18
Benefits paid (053 (0.27)
Interest cost on the defined benefit shligation 471 357
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations arising from changes in experience {7.30; [5.18)
adjustments
Actuarial (gain}/ loss on obligations arising from charges in demographic - -
adjustments
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations arising irom changes in financial 106 215
assumptions

Closing defined benefit obliwion 87.67 65.01
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v. The following pay-outs are expected in future years:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Within the next 12 months 1047 945
Between 1 and 2 years 147 1.34
Between 2 and 3 years 170 1.16
Between 3 and 4 years 405 1.36
Between 4 and 5 years 2.82 .98
Between 5 and € years 2.99 2.6
Beyund § vears 64,07 46.55
vi. The principal pti used in determining gratuity obligati for the Group's plan are shown below
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate {in %) 7.04% 7.23%
Salary escalation rate (in %) 8.00%% 2 00%
Employee Turnover/ Withdrawal Rare
18 10 30 Years 5.00% 5.00%
31tod4 Years 3.00% 3.00%
Above 44 Years L0 100%
Retirement age B0 years &0 years
Mortality Rate * 100% 0 TALM (2012-14)  100% of 1ALM (2012-
14)

Projected unit credit
methad {pucm)

Methad used

Projected unut credit
methed {pucm)

" Assumpticns regarding future martality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published stattstics (e 1ALM 2012-14 Ultimate). These assumptions translate into an average |ife expectancy in

years at retirement age

Risk Exposure

Plan Ch. and 4 iated Risks:

The Gratuity scheme is a Defined Benelit Plan that provides for a lump sum payment made on exit cither by veay of retiremenc. death or disability. The benefits are defined on the basis af final salary and the
perind of service and paid as lump sum at exit The Plan design means ‘e risks zommenly affecting the Hatuiites and the financial results are expected (o be

a) Discount rate risk : The discount rate (5 generally based upon the market yieids svadable on Government bands at the accounting date relevant to currency of benefit payments for a term that matches the

liabilities

b} Salary Growth risk : Salary growth rate is enterprise & long ‘erm best estimate as to salary i reases & takes account of inflation, senjority, promotion, business plan, HR policy and vther relevant facters on
P! F ¥

long term basis,

) Demographic risks: Attntion rates are the enternrise's best estimate of employee wimaver in futire determined considering factors such as nature of business & mdustry, retention pelicy, demand & supply

In employment market, standing of The Enterprise, business plan, HR Policy etc.

vii. A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant sssumption is as shown below:
Particulars _" - As at As at
v March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate
Decrease in Defined benefit cbligation due to 0 50% increase in discount rate {5.74) {417}
Increase in Defined benefit obligation due to 0.50% decrease in discount rare 638 484
Salery escalation rate
Increase in Defined benefit abligation due ts 0 50% increase in Expected 593 4:31
Salary Escalation rate
Decrease in Defined benefit obligation due 1o 0 50% decrease in Expected {5.52) {392}
Salary Escalation rate,
The above sensitvity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all sthers assumptions constant. In the event of change in more than one assumption, the impact would be different than
the stated above The methods and any types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity ani|ysis did not change sompared 1o prior perind
) Compeénsated absences

Accumulated leave. which is expected to be unlized within the riext 12 manths, is treated as shor-term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional Arouni

that it expects ro pay as a resull of the unused entitl that has acc

renders the related service

i at the reporting date The Group recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expenss, when an employe:

The Group trems accumulated leave expected 1 e carried forward beyond twelve months, as lang-rerm emplayee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuanal valuation using the projected unit credit methad at the reporting date, Actuanial gains/losses are immediately taken to the consalidated statement of prefit and foss and are not

deferred
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40 Segment reporting

Segments are [dentified in line with lnd A5-108, “Operating Segment” [specified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act}] read with Companies (Indien Accounting Standards) Rube 2015 {as
amended from time to time} and ather relevant provision of the Aet, taking into censideration the internal arganization and management structure as well as ditferential risk and rerurn of the segment,

A. Operating segments
India
Outside India
B. Identification of Segments
The chief cperational decision maker

the operating resulis of its Business segment separalely for the purpose of making decision about resotree allocation and performance assessment Segment

have heen dentified on the basis of geographical ares critena

performance is evaluated based on profit or Joss and is measured consistertly with profit or loss in the finaneial st ) g

specified in the [nd AS 108

C. Segment revenue and results

The expenses and income which are not directly attrb
D. Segment assets

are shown as unaliowable expenditure

ble 1o uny b

Segment assets includes respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments of non-current assets other than financial assets, deferred t

include amounts expected to be recovered mere than twebie months after the reparting period

ax assets and other non currant assets. Non-current assets are assers that

E. § y of Seg; tal Infor
For the year ended For the year ended

Hertienlans March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Segment revenue .

India 15,536 12 10.450.09

Outside India 4,195.32 130712

Segment Revenue %

India T8 74% 76,03%,

Outside Indin 21.28% Z3.97%
Segment Assets

India 191430 116433

Cutside India 489 51 534.45

Information about major customers

There ate two eustomers during financial year ended March 31,2025 [March 31, 2024; Two custorner) which have contributed 10% or moere to the Group's revenue,

Revenue fram major customers 14,347 59
Y ef toral revenue T2T1%
41 Leases
2} Leases

! Group as a lessee

.94 38
LT

The Group has [ease contracts for office facilities & Aluminium Formwork System | The lease term of the facilities is genarally between | - 3 years. The Group’s obligations under its leases are secured by the

lessor's title to the leased assets

The Group alsg has cerlain leases of affice facilities and office equipment's with low value or tenure less than 1 year_ The Group applies the 'lease of low-value assets / shart term lease ‘recagnition exemptions for

these leases (refer nore in)

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasanably certain whether or not 1o exercise the aopticn to renew or
terminate the lease. That is It eonsiders all relevant factars that create an economie incentive far it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencsment date, the Group reassesses the lease term

if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is Within its contral and afects its ability to exercise or not 1o exercise the option 10 renew or te terminate {e.g. co

mprovements or significant customization te the leased asset),

Il Group as a lessor

ion of si

The group has rented its office prerises on operating lease basis. All the arrangements are eancellable and are generally within 60 months. There are no contingent rents recognised ai incume in the year

A t g d in C lidated Stat of Profit and Loss

For the year ended For the year ended
HEigsie March31,2025  March 31, 2024
Rental Income (refer note 29) 0.55 044
Total 0.55 .44
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Notes forming part of the C lidated Fi ial 5t

(ALl s in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwise stated)
The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets r ized and the during the year is as follows
Plant & Machinery & Total
Gross block
As at March 31, 2023 - 31.71 3171
Additiens im 279
Exchange fluctuation - Uy 0.47
Deduction - {2.32} {2.32)
As at March 31, 2024 . 3265 32.65
Additions 17540 (AR 187.28
Exchange fluctuation - 0,04 0.04
As at March 31,2025 175.40 4457 219.97
Accumulated depreciation
As at March 31, 2023 - 15.82 15.92
Additions - 1501 13.01
Deduction - {1.05) (1.05)
As at March 31, 2024 - 27.88 27.88
Additions 3148 553 36.99
Deduction - - -
As at March 31,2025 31,46 33.41 64.87
Net block as at March 31,2025 143.94 11.18 155.10
Net block as at March 31, 2024 - 4.77 477
The carrying amounts of Liabilities gnized and the during the year is as follows:
As at April 01, 2021 2.47
Amounts recognized in consolidated statement of profit and loss 003
Exchange Fluctuation (0.08)
Pavment of lease liabilinies (1 78)
As at March 31, 2022 4.86
Additions 17.58
Amaunis recognized in consolidated statement of profit and |oss 083
Exchange Flucrustion 0.53
Fayment of laase liabilities (7.62
As at March 31, 2023 16.22
Additians 279
Amounts recognized in consolidated staterment of profit and loss 1.01
Exchange Fluctuation 015
FPayment of lease liahilities (15.38)
As at March 31, 2024 4.79
Additions 175 40
Amounts recognized in consolidated statement of profit and lnss 5.47
Exchange Fluctuation 0.03
Payment of lease liabilines {38.10)
As at March 31 2025 148.59
Particulars As at As at
o March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current {refer nate 23) 68423 478 %
Non Current (refer note 20) 92.88 -
The maturity analysis of Jease liabilities are disclased in nate 45,
The effective interest rate for lease labilities is 5 %
* Increase due to foreign exchange
The following are the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Less than one years 02 T.73
Omne to five years 49178 -
Mare thar five yedrs - -
Total undi d lease liabilities 162.48 7.73
Impact of discounting (13.89) (2.94)
Lease [iabilities included in the balance sheet 148.59 274
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Notes forming part of the C | d Fin
{All in Indian Rug in millions, unless otherwise stated)
The following are the amounts recognized in d of profit or loss:
Particulars Fur the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets refer note 33} 3699 13.01
Interest expense recogrised relating to lease liabilities {refer note 3z} 647 1.01
Loss an |lease termination (refer note 24) - -
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets / short teri leases (included in other expensss| (refer note 34 38.04 1112
Tetal amount recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss SLig0 L
- Total consolidated Cash outflow during the year:-
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
= S S S Y Mareh 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
* Payments for the principal portion of the lease liability {Financing Activities) 3163 14.37
* Payments for the interest portion of the |zase liability (Financing Activities) 647 101
+ Shortuterm lease payments, payments for leases of low-value assets and variable [sase payrments nst included 143 11.12
in the measurement of the lease |iabiliny (Operating Activities)
42 G and i
(i) Capital commitments; 39.59
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
14728 0218

Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital account and not
provided for (net of advances)

(ii) Contingent liabilities

In the ardinary course of business, the Group faces claims and assertions by vanous parties. The Group assesses such ¢lsims and assertions and monitors the |

assistance of external legal counsel wherever necessary, The Group records a lability far any claims whers a potental loss
statements if material. For potential losses that are considered possible, but nat prabable, the group provides disclos,

becomes probable.

The following 1s a descriptian of claims and assertioris where a potential loss is passible. it net probable. The Graup believes that none of the contingel

. results of op or cash flows

an the Group's financial ¢

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Claims against the group not acknowledged as debt

Goods and service tax 151.45 659

Total 151.45 6.59

43 Capital Management

The Group's capital management is intended to maximize the rerum 1o shareholders for meeting the long-term and

The Group determines the amount of capital required on

the basis of annual and long-term operating plans and strategic investmenc

shert-term goals of the Group through the aptimization of the debt and equity balance.

plans The finding requirements are met through equity and long-term/short-

term borrowings. The Group monitars the capital structure on the basis of Net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debit partiolic of the group

Far the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other reserves attributable (o the equity sharehalders of the Group

Net debt includes all long, short-terem borrewings and lease liabilities as reduced by cash and cash equivalents

The following table summarizes the capital of the Group -

Particulars As at As at
R March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Debit * 5,028 80 3486.33
Less: Cash and eash equivalents {823.23) (518.93)
Net debt (A) 4,206.37 2,966.40
Equity share capital 15564 619
Other equity 6,380.01 5.048.72
Total Equity (B} 7,135.65 5,054.91
Total capital (Net Debt and Equity) (A+B) 11,342.02 8,021.31
Net debt to equity ratio (ArB) 0.59 0.59

*Debt is defined as long-term borrowings, short-term borrowings and leas

epul environment on an ongoing basis with the
is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial
are in the financial statemenis but does not recard a hiability in its accounts unless the loss

ncies described below would have a material adverse =fect
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44 Fair Values
() Financial nstruments by category-
As at March 31,2025

Particulars Cost FVTPL* FVTOCH* Amortized cost
Financial assets

(1] Trade receivables - - - 531040
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents - - 823123
{iii} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - - 1.696.90
(iv) Loans - - *
(v} Other financial assets - - 106870
[y 1 1 # = 802 - -
Total - 8.02 - 8,900.23
Financial liabilities

(i} Borrewings = - = 487249
{ii) Lease Liabilities - 15711
{iii) Trade pavables - A = 1,182.64
(iv) Other financial labilies - - 73978
Taotal - - B,062.02
As at March 31, 2024 .

Particulars Cost FVTPL* FVTOCI** Amortized cost
Financial assets

{i} Trade receivables - - 3220948
(i) Cash and cash equivalents - 51993
(i1} Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - G85.349
(iv) Loans 11662
{v) Other financial assets - - 5 995.55
(vi) Investments - 7.73 -
“Total - 7.73 - 5,846.95
Financial liabilities

(i} Borrowings - - 348154
(i1} Lease Liabilites - 474
{iti} Trade payabies = - - 1,336.69
{iv} Other | liabilities s - 626.43
Total - - - 5,449 45

¥ Fair Value Thraugh Profit gnd Loss
** Far Value Through Other Comprehensive Ticome
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b) Fair value disclosures for financial assets and financial liabilities
Set out below s a comparison, by class, of the camying amounts and fair value of the Group's financial instruments, other than these with carrying amounts that are reasonable
approximations of fair values.

March 31,2025
Particulars Cost Fair Value
Financial assets
Investments 620 8.02
Total 6.2{ 8.02
March 31, 2024 S
Particul Cost Fair Value
Investments 620 773
Total - 6.20 7.73
Method and assumption
1 The carrying amount of consolidated financial assets and finansial habilities measured at amortized cost in the lidated ial are a ble approximation of their

fair values since the Group dogs not anticipate that the carmying amounts would be significantly different from the values that wauld eventually be received or settled
B &l ¥:

2 The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included ar the amount at which the Instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. other than in o
forced or hauidation sale.
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(Al

c)

45

(1)

(a)

ib)

Fair value hierarchy

All financial assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets

Level 2 - [nputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable, sither directly or indirectly

Level 3 - Inputs that are not based on observable market data

There are no transfers between level 1, level 2 and tevel 3 during the year

The carrying amount of consolidated financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost in the consolidated financial statements are # reasonable
approximation of their fair values since the Group does not anticipate that the carrying amounts would be significantly different from the values that would eventually be

As at March 31,2025

Fair value

Particulars wethodology Total carrying value Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total
Financial Assets
(i) Investment FVTPL 8.02 8.02 - - 8.02
Total Fi ial A L. 8.02 8.02 - - B8.02
As at March 31, 2024 1.4%
Fair value

i i 1 L
Particulars methodology Total carrying value Level 1 evel 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
(i} Investment FVTPL 17.53 17.53 - - 17.53
Total Financial Assets 17.53 17.53 - » 17.53
Financial risk m ent objecti d policies

The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks from its operations. The key financial risks include market risk (including foreign currency nsk and interest
rate risk}, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's senior management cversees the management of these risks The management is responsible for formulating an appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the Group and for pericdically reviewing the same. The senior management ensdares that financial risks are identified. measured and managed in accordance

with the Group's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarized below
Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Market risk-interest rate Borrowings Sensitivity analysis Mix of borrowings with
fixed and floating
interest
Market risk-foreign exchange Recognized financial Sensifivity analysis Faoreign currency
liabilities not exposure 15 unhedged
denominated in INR
Credit risk Financial assets Ageing analysis Credit limits
measured al amortized
Liguidity risk Borrowings and other Cash flow forecasting Availability of committed
liabilities credit lines and

borrowing facilities

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The
value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in interest rates foreign currency exchange rates, equity price fluctuations, liquidity and other market
changes, Future specific market movements cannot be normally predicted with reasonable accuracy

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure
1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group s debt obligaucns with floating interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting year are as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Fixed rate borrowings

Long term borrowings {includinig current maturities) 468 18 332.16

Short term borrowings 664.63 171,09

Variable rate borrowings

Long term borrowings (including current maturities) 1,648 15 1,620.17

Short term borrowings 2,091 55 1.358.12

Total borrowings 4,872.49 3,481.54

Sensitivity

For floating rate borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year, A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used, which represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rate

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 _ March 31. 2024
Variable Cost Borrowings at the year end 3,739.70 2.978.29
In case of fluctuation in interest rates by 50 basis points and all ather variables were held constant, the profit before tax for the year from continuing operations wauld
increase or decrease as follows:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 M 024 ;

Impact on profit before tax for the vear 18.70 14.89
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(¢) Market risk- Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
Foreign currency sensitivity

Particulars Change in currency Effect on profit before tax
Strengthening Weakening

March 31,2025

usp 5% (73 10) 7310

March 31, 2024

UsD 5% 0.91) 0.91

{2) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet irs obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. Finaneial instruments that
are subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by Group’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. An impairment analysis is performed
at each reporting date on an individual bazis for major customers. The Group does not hold collateral as security. Further, trade receivables cantribution to approximately
95% of the customers of the Group are due from government undertakings during each reporting period. The Group majorly deals with government authorities and

agencies which further reduces the credit risk of the Group.
With respect to Trade receivables, the Group has constituted the terms to review the receivables on periodic basis and ro take necessary mitigations, wherever required,

The Group creates allowance for all unsecured receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss based on a provision matrix. The provision ratrix takes inte aceount
historical credit loss experience and s adjusted for forward looking information.
The following table summarises the changes in the loss allowance measured using ECL:

Particulars As at March 31,2025  As at March 31, 2024
Opening balance 6623 -
Amount provided/ (reversed) during the year 67.66 66.23
Amount utilised during the year - <
Closing provision 133.89 66.23

(3) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk. where the group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The group’s approach is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of group's financial liabilities based an contractual payments:-

Particulars 0- 1 years 1to5 years > 5 years Total
March 31,2025

Borrewings 4370.76 490.84 1088 487249
Lease liabilities 64,23 92.88 - 157.11
Trade payables 2,292.64 - - 2,292.64
Other financial liabilities 739.78 - - 738,78
Total 7,467.41 583.72 10.89 B,062.02
Particulars 0 - 1 years 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
March 31, 2024

Borrowings 2.603.39 872,53 582 348154
Lease liabilities 4.79 - 4,79
Trade payables 1.336.69 - - 1.336.69
Other financial liabilities 626 43 - - 626 43

Total 4,571.30 872.53 5.62 5,449.45
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47 Information related to Corporate Social Responsibility
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company meeting the appheabulity thresheld, needs 1o spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corperate social
respensibality (CSR) activitles, The areas for TSR activities are specified in Schedule VI of the Companies Act 2013, The Detalls of current and brought forward CSR ebligations are detalled as below

a) Detail of CSR expenditure As at As at

March 31,2025 31-March-2024
(a) Grass armaunt required to be spent by the group 162+ 1589
(b) Amaunt approved by the Board to be spent duni g the year 2162 1589

Amount contributed / spent during the year on:
A) Other than On-going Projects:

Educational purposes - 33.40
Cthers 421 0135
Total [A) - 4.21 33.55
* Gross amount to be spent during FYi4-25 amounting te Rs. 21 62 Millions
b] Details of CSR nditure under Section 135(5) of the Act in respect of un amount other than ongoing projects for the year:
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2025 31-March-2024
Ameunt Adjusted for excess expenditure in previous year [17 41}
Amount spent during the year* [4.21) {33.55)
Closing Balance B = .
“Asat March 31,2015 Company has corried forward tie excess amount of Rs. [ 75 Millions (March 31, 2024 B 17 66 Millions ) to be set ofl against CSR ameount required to be spent in sub I penod
¢} Reconciliation of Unspent Amount {related to Other than ongoing project) N
FParticulars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 11, 2025 March 31, 2024
Falance at the beginnng 534 524
Less: Amount Spent from Unspent A/c of last year 524 -
Amaunt unspent during the eurrent vear - -
Balance at the end - 5.24

d) Unspent CSR Amount: The Comgany has deposiced the unspent amaunt for previous years subsequent to end of fnansial year 2023-24 In funds sprcified in Schedule VI of the Act for the purpase of CSR contribution and
hasfiled spplication for adjudication with the appropriate authonties for delay in payment of unspent amoun for previcus years
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48

48

i)

[iii)

{iv

(v

(v}

{vii)

(wiii)

{ix}

50

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

T ] As at March 31, 2025 As at 31-March-2024

Particulars Currency Foreign Rs. Foreign Currency Rs.

_— Currency
Trade Payable = Uso a8 15.58 0.22 121
Advance to suppliers Ush 016 47.65 -
Loan Given Lisn 168 31z85 - .
Bank usp 350 299 44 - -
Fixed Deposite usi 0.32 27.80 - -
Trade Receivable "sn BEH 158,66 - -

Other Statutory Information

The group does nat have any Benaini propetty, where any moceeding nas veer intiated or pending against the group for holding any Benami property under the Benamy -
Transactions (Prohibitian) Act. 1955 and rilr: made erenpda-

The group did not have any matenal (ruisaction with - op panies steuck off under Saction 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Acr, 1356 during the
respective reported financial year.

The Company does not have any neidlie cisanion of charge or satsfaction of cnarge which are yet to be filed or registered with Registrar of Companies except for 17 cases whera
satisfaction of charges could aot be filled due o non recant of NOC from the respective bank and 07 cases where creation of charges are pending due ro non receipt ot signed form
from the respective ban', hence cguid not flled with ROC-Dielhi as on March 31, 2025 For the loans clased during the period ended March 31, 2025 . the company iz in process of
obraining the NOC from the bark.

The graup has not traded or invested 10 Crypra curreney or Virtuai Currency.

The group has not advanced or lnaved or invested funds to any ather personis) or entity{is), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understandmg that the Pitermediary
shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities [dentified in aay manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the gioup (Ultimare Beneficiaries) o1
(b) provide any guarantee, security or sne like te o: or behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries ’

The group has not recerved am fund from any grrsonis) or entitylis), including forelgn eatities {Funding Farty) with the understandmg (whether recarded 'n writing or otherwise) that
the group shall
fa) divectly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons o entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ot on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarani=e, security o the like cn hehalf of the Ulnmare Bereficiaries

The Group doss not have any imrecorded tanzactons which have besn surrendeced or disclosed as Income during the year in the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1561

The Group 1s not declared walful defaulter by any bank. financial inscitution or lender,

During the year, no scheme of arrangernents in relation to the group hias been approved by the competent authority in terms of Section 232 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013
Accordingly. thus clause is not applicable to the gioup.

Employee Stock Options plans
Varinder Employee Stock Option Plan 2024 (hereinaiter refered as the “ESOP Plan’'} of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors and Momination & Remuneration
Committee in thelr meeting held on Augnst 28, 2024 and a recolution passed by the snareholders of the Company on August 29, 2024

Ne impact is required in March 31,2025 Anancial statements. When the stock optiens would be vested and granted to employees requisite impact would be taken on that date
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Motes forming part of the il Financial St:

;MI amounts in Indian Rupees in millions, unless otherwize stated)

51 Additignal Information required by paragraph 2 of the genaral | far p of & 4 Financial § te Schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013 -
As at March 31, 2035
Net Axsets Share in profit or (loss) Share in Other Comprehensive Share in Total Comprehensive
S e et Country of {i.2. total assets minus tolal Habilities) i s income {OCT) income (TCI)
incorpotation As v of Amount A% % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount
consolidaled consolidated consolidated consalidated
net assets profit or loss oc] Tl
i Parent company
Varindera Cy Limnited India 190t 100.42%, T16548 1030 54% 208335 F481% M 1008 1% 2097 59
2 Foreign subsidiary
Varindera Conatructions lnlerpational Limiied Manritus T00% [0.38%) 37,47} {18.13) A76% 122 (0.A1%) (16.90)
VEIL Maurititis Frivare Limited Maldives 65% [0 vy {0 73 {0.49) 0.0 {04, (00250 {0 50}
____ Intrs Group eliminations/ consalidation adjustments 13.83%%) {189} 01 0.34% . 00l% 030
Hon-Cnnhll‘lg Interest Q004 L6 + b6 0 0o, - 0.01% 026
. _Tow s ___N_ - — 100.00% 713565 190.00% 2,034.18 100.00% 45.80 100.00% 2,080.75
As at 21-March.2024
Net Jl\uadn . Share in profit or (loss} Share in Ddur Cﬂu:nbnswe Share in .Ttlll.l Comprehensive
SeNo. Name of e snt Country of (Le. total assels minus total labilities) income (OCI) inceme (TCI)
{ncorporation Az % of Amount As % of Amaunt As % of Amount As % of Amount
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated
net assats profit or lass o TCl
1 Parent company
Varindera Conatructions Lmelsd India 100% 107 26% 5.067.89 100 E6%% 144330 a3.58% (4041 100 31 % 143838
___ 2 Foreign subsidiary 3
— Yarindera Coastructions [igernstin al Linited Maurits 100 (1104 =0 B 19.48) 36427, (350} {8914} (1788
__ Itra Group eliminations/consulldation adjustments - (189) - - 5 - 3
Total 100.00% 5,054 91 100.00% 143382 100.00% (7-54) 100.00% 1,426.28
Materia! ace ounting policies F
Accompanylng Metes 10 Condnlhidate 4 Financial Statements 1-51 =

For § § Kothari Mehta & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fum's registeation ndimber - 0007S6N / NS00441

Jalay Sani
Partnar

Membership No. 5237394
Flace - Gurugram

Linte  Muay 03, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Varinders Constructions Limited

Varinder Kumar Garg
Chairman
DIN: 01563868
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